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Corporate Information and Key Dates

AFERREERH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTRAR (IN BERMUDA)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

REGISTRAR (IN HONG KONG)

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F Far East Finance Centre
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Hong Kong
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KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
Annual General Meeting
— Latest time to lodge transfers

28 September 2023
4 December 2023
28 November 2023
(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese
versions) is available to any shareholder of the Company
(the "Shareholder(s)") either in printed form and on the websites
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends the
Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders have the right to change their choice of receipt of our
future Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice
in writing to the Company or the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, by post or by email at is-
ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR D

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") engages in
entertainment, media and cultural development businesses, which
mainly include cinema operation.

MARKET REVIEW

During the year ended 30 June 2023 (the "Year"), cinemas in Hong
Kong resumed normal operations and a revival in consumption
sentiment was seen. Consumers had strong desire for leisure
spending and resumed visiting the cinemas. Also, the Hong
Kong government has implemented the Hong Kong-Asian Film
Collaboration Funding Scheme under the Film Development Fund,
which supports co-production of films by local and Asian production
teams, aiming to enhance the influence of Hong Kong films in
Asian markets and explore new distribution channels, which helped
promote the development of Hong Kong films.

In mainland China, pandemic containment measures were lifted
in early 2023. Nevertheless, it took time for citizens to get back to
normal life, hence a concrete revival in consumer spending was
only seen in the last quarter of the Year. Against this backdrop,
annual box office sales in mainland China, mainly led by Chinese-
made blockbusters, reached RMB20 billion in May 2023, breaking
the record set in 2022.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded a 48.7% increase in revenue,
to HK$456.2 million (2022: HK$306.7 million), mainly attributable to
the recovery of the film industry in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, with
the recognition of an impairment allowance related to the right-of-
use assets and fixed assets after the impairment assessment, and
an increase in operating expenses arising from the opening of new
cinemas, the Group’s net loss for the Year amounted to HK$317.0
million (2022: HK$218.4 million). Basic loss per share was HK$0.10
(2022: HK$0.06).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

BUSINESS REVIEW

Revenue from the cinema operation segment increased by
48.7% to HK$456.2 million (2022: HK$306.7 million), which
mainly included the revenue from box office takings amounting
to HK$389.1 million (2022: HK$270.1 million), accounting for
85.3% (2022: 88.1%) of the cinema operation revenue. In terms of
revenue by geographical segment, revenue from the Hong Kong
market increased by 81.7% to HK$295.8 million (2022: HK$162.8
million) and accounted for 64.8% (2022: 53.1%) of the cinema
operation revenue, while revenue from the mainland China market
increased slightly to HK$134.0 million (2022: HK$122.9 million)
and accounted for 29.4% (2022: 40.1%) of the cinema operation
revenue; the latter figure reflected the recovery in mainland China
only occurring towards the end of the Year.

During the Year, the Group opened four cinemas in mainland China
— in Changsha, Shenzhen, Foshan and Chengdu. As at 30 June
2023, the Group operated a total of 22 cinemas in mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia, offering a total of 171 houses
with more than 24,000 seats. All these cinemas were in strategic
locations, providing premium entertainment services.

Located in either large-scale commercial and entertainment
complex or upscale residential areas, the cinemas of the Group are
positioned as high-end premium cinemas equipped with advanced
technologies including IMAX® and CINITY theatre systems,
ScreenX, 4DX or MX4D motion systems, D-Box seats and Dolby
Atmos audio system. They also feature VIP houses and VIP
lounges, where the audiences can enjoy premium and exclusive
entertainment services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR D

PROSPECTS

Although the majority of countries have recovered from the
pandemic and resumed normal business activities, headwinds
such as interest rate hikes, sustained inflation, political tensions,
etc, are still creating uncertainties for the macro economy, making
consumers cautious with their spending. The Group will therefore
continue with prudent expansion of its network. Subsequent to
the Year, an Emperor Cinemas Plus+ was opened in The Wai,
which is a new shopping mall in Tai Wai, serving as another iconic
community landmark in the New Territories, Hong Kong; and an
Emperor Cinemas was opened in Chongging in mainland China.
In 2024, one Emperor Cinemas is expected to be opened in
mainland China and one Emperor Cinemas Plus+ is expected to
be opened in Hong Kong.

With the continued increase in the disposable income and living
standards in mainland China, there will be room for further
development in terms of leisure spending; coupled with the five-
year plan laid out by the China Film Administration, the Group is
positive about the outlook for the film exhibition market. Leveraging
its long-established Emperor brand label, the Group will continue
strengthening its core competencies, in order to seize the
opportunities and bring sustainable returns to its shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION HthBAFEE R
Liquidity and Financial Resources mEEERMBEIR

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents 2023 FE6830H ' AEB RS RIRESEEY)
amounted to HK$82.0 million (2022: HK$117.4 million), which were 82 000,0007& 7% (20224 : 117,400,000 7T)
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. FTEUBATRAREEH -

To finance its operations and capital expenditure, the Group utilises FEEBBESEELSZRERELN—ZHEEALT
cash flows generated from operations and from loan facilites &IBTERHZEHME > AHZSEREAT HIE
granted by a related party and a bank. As at 30 June 2023, the &% - ¥2023F68308  AEBEZEEEA
Group had total borrowings of HK$685.9 million (2022: HK$542.7 685,900,000 7T (20224 : 542,700,000 7T) »
million), which comprised a loan from a related party of HK$595.6 3B E11E2k B — & RiiE A + >~ 520595,600,000
million (2022: HK$452.5 million), bank loan of HK$20.0 million & 71 (20224 : 452,500,000 75T )~ R {7 B ®&
(2022: HK$20.0 million) and amount due to non-controlling interest 20,000,000 7t (20224 : 20,000,000 7t ) &
of HK$70.3 million (2022: HK$70.2 million), respectively. Except for  f& {7 JE$2 §& #E 25 IE70,300,00038 71 (20224 -
the amount due to non-controlling interest, which is unsecured and 70,200,000 7T) o BRFE(T IS AR 1E 25 = 18 24 4
interest-free, all these borrowings are unsecured, interest-bearing B E > FIEZSEEABEIKFELRTIELRE
and have fixed repayment terms. The gearing ratio of the Group [EE B HI o 2023F6830H  AEFB 2B E
(expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over total assets) &{&tE=R (BEM4RE SRS EREEER) £48.9%
was 48.9% (2022: 30.0%) as at 30 June 2023. (20224 : 30.0%) ©

Management has closely monitored the development of the EBEE—BFYERGENEEREHANERR
pandemic and its impact on the current and anticipated liquidity of B KRKFERFTHESH R E - KEERAEFES
the Group in the future. Having considered the existing improvement  jERVIR B NS LBEE A T RIB{TRHZ A
measures implemented by the Group and the available loan facilites BEEZRHEE  ~XATES(E5 3 E59))
granted by the related party and the bank, the directors of the FRAREEEHEE TR EERE(TEHRREKHN
Company (the "Directors" or "Board") believe that the Group will EiEBSKENMENR D BERHNEMTIERE -

have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its future working capital

and other financing requirements for the foreseeable future.

Emperor Cinemas — IFS Mall, Chongqing
HEEZY — EEEETILES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR D

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Macau
Pataca and Malaysian Ringgit. As most of the Group’s external
monetary assets, liabilities and related transactions were transacted
at and denominated in the functional currency of its foreign
operations, the Group was not exposed to significant fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates during the Year that would have material
impacts on its financial performance.

LEGAL LITIGATION

During the Year, the Company announced that Emperor UA
Cinemas Limited (“Emperor UA”, a 70%-owned subsidiary of the
Company) commenced a proceeding in the Court of First Instance
in the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“High Court”) by way of originating summons for an injunction order
restraining Lark China Cinema Investments Limited (‘UA Minority
Shareholder”, a 30%-equity shareholder of Emperor UA, and a
business partner since the commencement of business of Emperor
UA Cinemas) from presenting a winding-up petition against Emperor
UA, based on the alleged shareholder loan of approximately
HK$70.0 million (“Alleged Shareholder Loan”) in respect of which a
statutory demand (“Statutory Demand”) was served on Emperor UA
by UA Minority Shareholder. Afterwards, the Company announced
that the High Court granted a permanent full injunction order in favour
of Emperor UA restraining the presentation of a winding-up petition
based on the Statutory Demand. Besides, UA Minority Shareholder
started a new court proceeding by filing a winding-up petition (the
“Petition”) to the High Court against Emperor UA under the provision
of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in relation to the
Alleged Shareholder Loan and inter alia, on grounds of insolvency.
Subsequently, the Company announced the cessation of the entire
operation of a wholly-owned operating company of Emperor UA, &
SR (%) BAFRAT) (Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong)
Company Limited*) (“Emperor UA (Guangdong)’), which was
primarily engaged in the operation of seven Emperor UA Cinemas
in mainland China. In January 2023, UA Minority Shareholder has
withdrawn the Petition and the winding up proceedings have come to
an end. Details were set out in the Company’s announcements dated
15 July 2022, 26 July 2022, 21 November 2022 and 4 January 2023.

*

for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER Wk

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s number of employees was 743
(2022: 745). Total staff costs including the Directors’ remuneration
and other staff costs for the Year were HK$115.1 million (2022:
HK$85.3 million). Each employee’s remuneration was determined
in accordance with individual’s responsibilities, competence and
skills, experience and performance, as well as market pay levels.
Staff benefits include medical and life insurance, provident funds
and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company has adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set out in the
section headed “Share Options Scheme” of the Company’s annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).

Emperor Cinemas — Lisboeta Macau
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBAEBZER

Executive Director (Chairperson)

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, aged 60, an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chairperson of the Board. She is also the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company
in March 2017 and has been responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, business growth and development as well as overseeing
different functions within the Group. She has over 34 years of
corporate management experience in diversified businesses ranging
from cinema development and operation, entertainment production
and investment, artiste management, property investment and
development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery,
financial and securities services to wholesaling and retailing of
furniture as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer by
profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a
Master's Degree in Business Administration. Ms. Fan is currently a
director of Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163)
("Emperor International"), Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(Stock Code: 296) ("Emperor E Hotel"), Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (Stock Code: 887) ("Emperor W&J"), Emperor Capital Group
Limited (Stock Code: 717) ("Emperor Capital Group"), Ulferts
International Limited (Stock Code: 1711) ("Ulferts") and New Media
Lab Limited (Stock Code: 1284) ("New Media Lab"), all being listed
members under Emperor Group.

Executive Director

Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 37, an Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
He joined the Company in March 2017, and has been actively
formulating the Group’s innovative strategies by integrating digital
technologies with premium services to position high-end markets
for the Group’s cultural industry business. Mr. Yeung is also the
vice chairman of Emperor Entertainment Group and Emperor
Motion Pictures, assisting in leading entertainment production and
investment, artiste management, film investment and distribution,
and cinema development and operations. Besides, he has a wide
range of experience in property investment and development, hotel
operations, financial and securities services, retailing of watch &
jewellery, media and publication, furniture and furnishing, etc. Mr.
Yeung is also an executive director and the vice chairman of the
board of Emperor International.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBAEBZER

Executive Directors (continued)

Wong Chi Fai, aged 67, joined the Company in March 2017
as an Executive Director of the Company. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Wong has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well as
overseeing the financial management of the Group. He has over
30 years of finance and management experience in different
businesses ranging from cinema development and operation,
entertainment production and investment, artiste management,
manufacturing, property investment and development, hotel and
hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, financial and securities
services to wholesaling and retailing of furniture as well as media
and publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wong is
currently a director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel,
Emperor W&J, Emperor Capital Group, Ulferts and New Media Lab.

Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 60, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is also
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Ms.
Hughes is currently engaged in the management of entertainment
businesses involving production and distribution of music, TV
programmes and motion pictures as well as event performance
and artiste management. She was previously the Chief Executive
Officer of New Media Group and has over 30 years’ experience in
media and publishing business. Prior to that, she worked for Hong
Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company Limited as Program
Presenter and Producer as well as for Hong Kong Cable Television
Limited as Channel Manager of Entertainment Channel and
Controller for Program Development and Production for more than
10 years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 60, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in July 2014. She is also
a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with Bachelor's Degree in Laws and is a
retired solicitor and with over 20 years of experience as independent
non-executive director of various listed companies. She is currently
an independent non-executive director of Chinlink International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor W&J.

Ho Tat Kuen, aged 49, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2016. He is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Ho has been practising as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong since 2009 and has over 25 years of
experience in accounting profession. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, and is a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong
Kong.

Tam Sau Ying, aged 55, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2018. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Ms. Tam is a co-founder and partner of Messrs.
Vitus Lawyers. She has over 20 years of experience in the legal
profession and is also an accredited mediator and a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer. Ms. Tam graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree
and gained her Master of Arts Degree from University of Essex,
England. She later studied law in The University of Hong Kong and
was admitted as a solicitor in 2001.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses, which mainly include cinema operation.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 58 and 59 respectively of this
report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year, important events
occurred after the reporting period and an analysis of the likely
future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 4 to 9 of this
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages
27 to 51 of this report and note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Five-
year Financial Summary on page 160. Discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with the
Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Company
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2022/2023 of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of HK$30,818,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 62 of this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 30 June 2023, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders (2022: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7
December 2021 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented less than 30.0%
of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer amounted for
11.3% to the Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented 61.5% of the Group’s total purchases and services
received. The largest supplier accounted for 16.6% of the Group’s
total purchases and services received.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial interests in the
share capital of any of the above major customers or suppliers of
the Group.

\14
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen
Ms. Tam Sau Ying

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 10 to 12 of this report.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”), Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander (“Mr. Alex Yeung”) and Ms. Shirley
Percy Hughes (“Ms. Shirley Hughes”) shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“2023 AGM”). Ms. Vanessa
Fan and Mr. Alex Yeung, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election thereat, whilst Ms. Shirley Hughes, being eligible but does
not offer herself for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2023 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during the
Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided for
in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against the Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

£
RAEENREZARERN EEZBNT :

BITES
BB L L (ZE)
IR S e
EENEE
EFAHT L L

BIFERITES
PRIBI 4+
AR SEE
EEEL L

REBERE EFREREEAEZBEFE
HNARSEIOELHE - ERFHIFBHN GRS
FAFSERARMIEED o

RIFER QT Z AT A 5E84(1) K84 (2)1% > SEH
Ert (BT D HBEEXREHBEE ) R
TR E((FRE D RNEERREFRE
(MOEFERRBFARE ) LHERFE-BELL
RIGREMEERTREN G LEEEE mat
YEHEERBARENE LEEEE-

BERE2023FRREFAG LBEEETZSE
FHAEETANAIR—FENRNEECEER
EERSN) M F U L2 RIEMRFF 4T ©

BEAH
FEBRAFERNLEMRAEBRANERER
WAEBNEERERTHI LHFEERNEH (E
BEHIFRIN) °

EEFFRMEIRX
REEENRBEARS QI HEFRAE
B E )5 T SIS M AR AT L B
EREM FATNEEEEFNEEIE 2%
B RR A AR MU RAER SR EF
RESHEENSEERRA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 R




Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief
Executives”) in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Mr. Alex Yeung Eligible beneficiary of a private
e discretionary trust
IWARBERZEERZTmA

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert
Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment
Holdings”). AY Entertainment Holdings is held by Alto Trust
Limited in trust for a private discretionary trust of which Mr.
Alex Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.
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(B) Long position interests in ordinary shares of
associated corporations of the Company

(B) ?:::ZIIQ}EJ#EH%%ZEEHQZ!H%
Em

Ms. Vanessa Fan Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
BRt HEHER BB
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary of a private 2,747,611,223 74.71
kL HE2ER discretionary trust (Note)
MWARBERZEERZ R (Hz)
Emperor E Hotel - Ditto - 851,353,645 71.63
HEIRERE -FEE- (Note)
(Hz)
Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,298,630,000 63.41
HEEHRKE -[AL - (Note)
(Htaz)
Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00
Bt -AL- (Note)
(Hat)
Note: BysE -

Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and Ulferts
are companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange.
These shares were ultimately owned by respective private
discretionary trusts. Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interests in the
same shares by virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
such private discretionary trusts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors
nor Chief Executives had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. No option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.

The number of share options available for grant under the scheme
mandate as at the beginning and the end of the Year respectively,
was 321,334,089, which represented 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the end
of the Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or Chief Executives or
their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or Chief Executives, as at
30 June 2023, the persons or corporations (other than a Director
or Chief Executive) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

BERGNEERZLH

PR LR st 8O MAFERRINAFERN
EAER ZABHEEAERAR - MEBAE
HEARMBATDELEMLH FEF WK
SITHABHREFZ MBI T F L AIFE
RSB R AT AR EMEABR Z R S E#E
5% A ENH &

Hth AL IR1D R ABRARR D 2

122023F6 30 MENESHESITHRAS
FRl IREFERESITERAESIN RN ZHERE
AR ch A SUARAR 2 AR E 1B sC it 1 IR ER
SFREIEIRBIEIFRATFEZ S ((HmE
o)) 2 EmEH A 2 ATSUAEESINT ¢

RRHBzEE

AY Entertainment Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,371,313,094 73.80

5 P IR ST RS REEGEE 2 R

Alto Trust Limited Trustee of a private discretionary trust 2,371,313,094 73.80

WARIBEFEZZFEA

Dr. Yeung Sau Sing, Albert Founder of a private discretionary trust 2,371,313,094 73.80
(“Dr. Yeung”) TWABIBEFEZAILA

S it (MgiEtl)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,371,313,094 73.80
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) ACiBmEm

B hEwt (TEXL))

Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Alex Yeung had  fifzF | ZERN B EX EERESTHRABE Z BE5RE

deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above. Ms. Semon Luk
is the spouse of Dr. Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Directors or
Chief Executives were not aware of any person or corporation
(other than the Directors and Chief Executives) who had, or were
deemed or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in entertainment, media and
cultural development businesses. As at 30 June 2023, the interests
of the Directors in the business which are considered to compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

i. Mr. Alex Yeung, being one of the beneficiaries of a private
discretionary trust of which Dr. Yeung is the founder
and settlor, is deemed to be interested in various private
companies under such trust which are also engaged in film
investment. Given that he cannot control the board of the
Company and the companies under such trust, the Directors
considered the Group’s interests are adequately safeguarded;
and

ii. Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Vanessa Fan had directorship
interests in private companies engaged in film investment. In
light of the size and dominance of the portfolio of the Group,
such disclosed deemed competing business is considered
immaterial.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly or
indirectly, in such transactions:

(A) Continuing Connected Transactions — Master
Agreement on purchasing furniture products
and coupons and obtaining furniture
procurement consultancy services (“Master
Furniture Agreement”)

Date: 29 June 2020
Parties: (1) The Company
(2) Ulferts
Term: From 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

ESENBRFEHZEDR

FEETBUFRE BRAXCERER R
B EMARA > 122023568308 EFHNWAEH
AL ERNEREBAGFUAIERBAHRFZ
EFTPHAATRE EmAT

i BEEFA—EMARBETE BIELES
BRILARMERTFN) ZEGERZETmAZ
— WRBEAZEEETZRTTUSFER
RENABED - ENRERIERIRAT
RZEABETABZESTE  EFTVAEE
B mEETEDIRE 5 K&

i. BESEBEEURBREIBEENREEXKREN
ARBNES D - BN AEEREMES
ZRERBERE LHZEREAHRFES
AR EFARE -

EERTE T SURMES
S EAER

RAEE AEFREARTHEAL(ERR L
TR ET IR  ETEFNZERZT
EEFNEEEREAER !

(A FEMERXR S -BERME®
B2 15 35 LA e % B K R 1% HE 55 58
AR 3% Z 48 1 s (TAR IR R 17 5% 1)
SE I 2020564294
T4 ¢ (1) 27
2) Bt
HARR E2020% 78 1HE2023%6
A308

° 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 R




Directors’ Report

EFEWE

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interest:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amounts:

Remark:

Ulferts and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Ulferts Group”) shall (i)
sell furniture products and coupons and
provide furniture procurement related
consultancy services to members of
the Group in relation to the projects,
investments or for own consumption by
the Group and (ii) provide such other
types of ancillary services in the ordinary
course of business of the Group.

As the Company and Ulferts were both
indirectly controlled by the respective
private discretionary trusts founded by
Dr. Yeung who is deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company, Ulferts
was a deemed connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung, a
Director, had deemed interest in the
transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling
Ulferts.

29 June 2020

During the Year, the amounts of
HK$196,878 and nil were paid to Ulferts
Group for the purchase of furniture
products and coupons and the obtaining
of furniture procurement consultancy
services respectively.

With the upcoming expiration of the
Master Furniture Agreement, the
Company entered into new master
agreement with Ulferts on 3 March 2023.
Details of the renewal are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 3
March 2023.

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions — 2020
Master Leasing Agreement (“2020 MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

\20 :

3 December 2020

(1) The Company

(2) Emperor International
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Term:

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interest:

From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

The 2020 MLA sets out the framework
of the terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing of certain properties (including
offices, cinema and advertising space)
from Emperor International and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Emperor International Group”) with
aggregate tenancy annual caps being set
for each of the financial years ended 30
June 2022, 2023 and for the 9 months
ending 31 March 2024.

Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and the relevant
members of Emperor International Group
may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreement(s) in relation
to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The terms of
each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental shall
be subject to arm’s length negotiation and
be determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

As the Company and Emperor International
were both indirectly controlled by the
respective private discretionary trusts
founded by Dr. Yeung who is deemed
substantial shareholder of the Company,
Emperor International was a deemed
connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex
Yeung, a Director, had deemed interest
in the transactions by virtue of being one
of the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling
Emperor International.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAT
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Announcement:

Aggregate
amount:

3 December 2020

The aggregate amount of the Tenancy
Transactions with Emperor International
Group for the Year was HK$2,370,574.

(C) Continuing Connected Transactions — Master
Framework Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

\22 B

15 July 2022
(1) The Company

(2) AY Entertainment Holdings

From 15 July 2022 up to 30 June 2025

The Master Framework Agreement sets
out the framework of the terms governing
all future tenancy and/or licensing
transaction(s) and any sub-let or sub-
licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy and
Licensing Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing or licensing properties, assets and
any right-of-use from AY Entertainment
Holdings with aggregate tenancy annual
cap for each of financial years ended/
ending 30 June 2023, 2024 and 2025.

Pursuant to the Master Framework
Agreement, relevant members of the
Group and the relevant members
of the AY Entertainment Holdings
and its subsidiaries, excluding the
Group, (collectively referred to as “AY
Entertainment Holdings Group”)
may from time to time enter into any
definitive agreement(s) in relation to any
Tenancy and Licensing Transactions
(“Definitive Tenancy and Licensing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
Definitive Tenancy and Licensing
Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which
are no less favourable to the Group
than terms offered by independent third
parties. The terms, rental and licence
fees shall be subject to arm’s length
negotiation and be determined based on
the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market
rents or licence fee on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and
permitted use.
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Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interest:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amount:

As AY Entertainment Holdings was the
controlling shareholder of the Company.
As such, AY Entertainment Holdings was
a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Mr. Alex Yeung, a Director, has deemed
interest in the transaction by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
the relevant private discretionary trust
controlling AY Entertainment Holdings.

15 July 2022

The aggregate amount of the Tenancy
and Licensing Transactions with AY
Entertainment Holdings Group for the
Year was nil.

(D) Continuing Connected Transactions —
Framework Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

18 May 2023

(1) The Company

(2) Emperor Motion Picture Limited
(“Emperor Motion Picture”)

From 1 July 2022 up to 30 June 2025

The Framework Agreement sets out the
framework of the terms governing all
existing and future (i) film rental licence
transactions between the relevant
members of Emperor Motion Picture and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Emperor Motion Picture Group”)
as licensor and the Group as licensee
(“Film Rental Licence Transactions”)
and (ii) film promotion transactions
between Emperor Motion Picture
Group as promotion appointer and the
Group as promotion service provider
(“Film Promotion Transactions”) with
aggregate Film Rental Licence Annual
Cap and Film Promotion Annual Cap
being set for each of the financial years
ended/ending 30 June 2023, 2024 and
2025.
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Connected
relationship

and Directors’

interest:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amounts:

\24 -

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement,
relevant members of the Group and
relevant members of Emperor Motion
Picture Group may from time to time enter
into any definitive agreement(s) in relation
to any Film Rental Licence Transactions
and Film Promotion Transactions
(“Definitive Agreement(s)’). The terms
of each Definitive Agreement shall be
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation
and on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties.

As Emperor Motion Picture was an
indirect wholly-own subsidiary of the
controlling shareholder of the Company,
Emperor Motion Picture was a connected
person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Mr. Alex Yeung,
a Director, has deemed interest in the
transaction by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling
Emperor Motion Picture.

18 May 2023

The aggregate amounts of the Film
Rental Licence Transactions and Film
Promotion Transactions with Emperor
Motion Picture Group for the Year
were HK$4,454,290 and HK$653,209
respectively.
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as the “Film rental expense”, “Film promotion income”,
“Purchases of furniture” and "Lease payments not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities" for the Year as disclosed in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements which constituted
continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”) of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as
shown in the note thereon are connected transactions exempted
from announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the relevant
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions.

Independent Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The independent auditor has issued an unqualified conclusions
in respect of the non-exempt CCTs disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
Auditor's Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors (INEDs”) had reviewed the non-exempt CCTs
and the Auditor’'s Letter and had confirmed that these transactions
had been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal or better commercial terms (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to the
financial performance of the Group and individual performance, ad
hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, there was sulfficient public float
of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Messrs. Emst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer itself
for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution for its re-
appointment as independent auditor of the Company will be
proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company so as to ensure “Accountability,
Responsibility and Transparency” towards Shareholders,
stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules so as to
having effective application of the principles of good corporate
governance. During the Year, the Company had fully complied with
all code provisions of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity, excellence
in products and services, people first and positivity, which is
underpinned by its purpose and values that enable employees at
all levels of the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by
acting in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner that allows the
Company to deliver sustainable long-term performance and operate
in a way that benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are
integrated throughout the Company’s operational practices,
workplace policies and practices and stakeholder relationships:

Purpose
[— 1=
~B8

To engage and delight our
stakeholders for success

B RV & » RFLATH
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and regulatory
compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the culture,
purpose, value and strategy of the Group are aligned with one
another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in the
interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its affairs
and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial
and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, four are Executive
Directors and three are INEDs. Names and other biographical
details of the members of the Board are set out on pages 10 to
12 of this report under the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section. All of them possess the skills, experience
and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established:

e sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

e no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the Chief
Executive ensure that there is a balance of power and
authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent views on
various issues concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a wide range of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The merits and contribution that
will bring to the Board for any Director proposed for re-election
or any candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and
length of service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 30 June 2023
is summarized as follows:

AT ENERE ZTEER > ERYIAER
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HRE ERRZ T EERESEE b BEE
RIS Fle - ERBBEH R &k FE
B e B R RFF FH > UREE G R]5E
R AMEARERNEMEMERE - LT
PEZREERESFUEAERZZEAESERE
ANBREFEHRNEEBRERE ETEEE
2N B Y 1h 3 SRS LU R 2R T8 B BE ~ A8
B RZTbEE -

ERNESFEHEARRTHESTR FXMH
ﬁ%é%%)ﬁ’zﬁﬁ?“ﬁﬂﬂﬁ’]ynftm & 1202346
A308> %?@E’\J%ﬁfbéﬁé*ﬂ%%ﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age Distribution and Length of Service

EFCHR M55 ~ F 87 57 o R R 75 F R

Number of Directors
EEIN

7

6

Gender
1R

Designation
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

EFERFERASER

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience
MERAITER A, K5

Business Management
EFHEE

Legal/Regulatory
EREE

Financial & Accounting

MR &5t

Strategic Planning & Risk Management
B S & AR EIE

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with
four female directors out of seven (57%). During the Year,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board
approved a target of having no less than 25% female directors
on the Board. The Nomination Committee was of the view
that the current gender diversity of the Board was appropriate,
balanced and exceeding the target set. Therefore, no timeline
or plan was proposed for further enhancing the gender
diversity target of the Board for the time being. The Nomination
Committee will continue reviewing the composition of the
Board to maintain diversity.

As at 30 June 2023, our total workforce comprised of
47% female and 53% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 57% female and 43% male. The current gender
diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into account the
business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of
the Company and the Listing Rules. The INEDs had provided
their confirmation of independence to the Company. Based on
the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee,
the Board considered each of them to be independent with
reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Board Process

Besides regular Board meetings are held during the Year, additional
Board meetings, or meetings of Board committees established
by the Board to consider specific matters, were convened, when
necessary.

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set
out below:

ERERERF
BRAFESTENEFTERIN L E2RTH
FINNEFE TR AHEFERINEFESE

Bgg® USEREFE-

BEFRAFELESZZBERHINT

Executive Directors

BTEE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa 10110 (C) - -

SEHERL

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 10/10 - -

6 s

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

1010 - 1n

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 10110 - -

SHARTR L

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTESR

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 10/10

gLt

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen
fERLE

10/10 44(C) 1

Ms. Tam Sau Ying 10110 4/4 11 (C)

BIEELL

11(C) 11 (C) 15/15 (C) 212
15/15 212
15/15 212

15/15 2/2

- 1n - 22

17 - - 212

17 - - 212

Total number of meetings held: 10 4 1
BTEEzEY:

C: Chairperson/Chairman of the Board/Committee

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company has received confirmation from each Director that
he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature of offices
they held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitment, including the identity of the public companies or
organizations and an indication of the time involved.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE

CIEFE EEETFE

RAFE  RIBFEEERTAZTFANREC.2.7
% EFCRBIUIFATEFERAATERRY
Bz

FATERERESNHERSZ > HEREEFERN
BRARRHEMBENERERATEE - EFIN0H
IABIRBEWET R A B SAE B ER TR E
BN EUKRHEMERAIENEE (WF) > 85
DR B HABBBY B0 LU PRI B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R RN




Corporate Governance Report
TEERWE

Ms. Vanessa Fan acts as the Chairperson of the Board who
provides leadership to the Board. The day-to-day management of
the Group is delegated by the Board to the Executive Directors who
are responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development. The segregation of duties make the Board and
the operation of the Group function effectively.

Ms. Vanessa Fan sets the agenda for the Board and ensures
that members of the Board receive accurate, timely and clear
information, and that matters to be taken into consideration are
given their due weight, so that sound decisions can be made. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson ensures
that the Board properly exercises its powers, holds its meetings
and implements procedures in compliance with all rules and
requirements, and full and proper records are maintained.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at the Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have access
to supporting papers and relevant information for each scheduled
meeting. All Directors also have access to the services of the
Company Secretary and her team, and may take independent
professional advice upon request, at the Company’s expense.

Induction, and Training for Directors

The Company provides Directors with regular updates on changes
to and developments of the Group’s business, and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities to help them make informed
decisions and discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. Such materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
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During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company:

REFE KEFHC2UFEEXEYR B8
HEAMUTEIEZHNE TIEB#EM
K DS R R BT S 2 Ms A e pe » W BB
ATRMIEIECE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SERER T

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
BB E

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

ESEEL

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes
SHmET L £

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
PRYBIC 2+

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen

feliZERE 4

Ms. Tam Sau Ying
EERT T

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees.

1. Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson
of the Committee), Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, Mr.
Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes. It has all powers
and authorities of the Board except the following major matters
as set out in a “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board”:

e  determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

e approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;
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approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-use
asset according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the Listing
Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the Listing
Rules; and

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

2. Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho
Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene and Ms. Tam Sau Ying.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set
out in its terms of reference which include duties specified in
the CG Code and are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

\34 B

reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/or
the independent auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting policies and principles adopted by
the Group, When reviewing the accuracy and fairness
of the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 (“Previous Year”)
and the interim consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 31 December 2022 before submission
to the Board for consideration, the Audit Committee
has focused not only on the impact of the changes
in accounting policies and practices, but also on the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and relevant legal requirements;

reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group during the Previous
Year;

performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;
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iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at the annual general meeting held
on 1 December 2022 (2022 AGM");

v. reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

vi. approved the audit plan for the Previous Year and the
Year, reviewed the independence of independent auditor
and approved its engagement;

vii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the Company’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
performance and reporting; and

viii. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the adoption
of new anti-corruption policy and procedures and the
revised whistle-blowing policy and reporting procedures
for the Company.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi
Fai, being the Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation to
the Board;

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii. reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.
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Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson of the
Committee), being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ho Tat
Kuen and Ms. Tam Sau Ying, both being INEDs.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, and
Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy adopted
by the Company.

The Nomination Policy of the Group which aims at assisting
the Nomination Committee in identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making recommendation
to Shareholders regarding any Director proposed for election
or re-election at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by
Shareholders on election of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential candidates
from any source as it may consider appropriate and
evaluate them by considering various factors, including their
professional expertise, industry and business experience,
time commitments, potential contributions to board diversity,
material conflict of interest with the Group (if any) and
independence (for INEDs). The Committee will then make
recommendation for suitable candidates to the Board for
consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment of
existing Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
(“AGM”), the Committee will review the rotation and retirement
of Directors and make recommendations to the Board
accordingly.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;
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ii. reviewed the revised Board Diversity Policy, Nomination
Policy and terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and made recommendations to the Board for
approval;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iv. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time
committed in performing their duties as Directors;

v. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2022 AGM; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the gender
diversity target at Board level.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August
2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of four members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee), being the
Chairperson of the Board, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, being an
INED, a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG Committee
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the CG Committee are (a) developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company (“CG Policy”) and making recommendations to the
Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group regarding dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to the
Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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iv. reviewed the said codes of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of the
Company, had duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The management has
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
financial statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects as
at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board had adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgment and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial
statements were prepared on a “going concern” basis (with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and showed
a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The
management had provided sufficient explanation and information to
the Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable it to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The independent auditor of the Company
had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and day-
to-day running of a business and it assists a company in achieving
its business objectives. Internal control policies and procedures
within the Group are updated regularly with the primary objective
of providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls; and (ii) risk
management functions in its principal subsidiaries of the Company
for the year.

A. Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and Control Systems. Such Control Systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
e  safeguarding assets;

*  ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports;

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws; and

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

e responsible for the overall Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

e oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

e ensure the presence of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

R EE R AR
NEGEEHRINEERAEXBEEERESR
WEEBB ABEMEEBER AEBZAHER
ERRAEFEHENR T EZERAMAREE
RAMEZERR (TEERR ) 2 BEAERREMHR
—MRISS|I RIEREE

RAEFERN  AAF B ()~ ERB 2 NEk T
HERKRERF  MEPMAEAEE OEMBE 2
BREREE, R(I)FABEEZNBEAT ZER
EIEAE

A. RERER
EFgasHRAEERUKMITEERA
MOEBREERGEER R -ZERRETE
EMIEERAREENEHERNVEAR > 112
Bl ER S SRR SRR R P S IEMIFE S
fRag °

EERGzTEEREE !

s (REBEBE;

o HMRPBRBRAREZ TR EREY
RBME

o REBTHR -BRF ERRER K&

. (REAEMERIAE o

B. M&lEE
(1) EaEE

BIERAMPEIEREETIMT ¢

EFT
s BEEEEZEZAMIBREAN
N

s AEBEZZEEMHTHEEES
BRI

s HBEAKRBEERAVHEERS;

HIEBRESERERNEER
1% &

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 FE R




Corporate Governance Report
TEERWE

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
(including the ESG risks) that the Group is willing
to take in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit,
financial reporting function and of those relating to
the Company’s ESG performance and reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external
environment;

consider major findings on internal control matters (if
any) raised by internal and external auditor and make
recommendations to the Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the
auditor.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and report
to the Audit Committee for its review.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design and implement the Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

monitor the Control Systems properly and ensure the
Control Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditor; and
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e provide written confirmation to the Board on the s MEERFZAMNUERMERSIF
effectiveness of the Control Systems. ﬁ%@ﬁ@u,
Internal Audit Department A ERE 1% EEFT

carry out audit checking on sample basis and
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls;

alert the management on the audit findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the
internal controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit and agreed action
plans to the Audit Committee and the Board on
regular basis.
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(2) Operational Control (2) =EEE
The management is responsible for analysing the control EEE G BN MEEEIRIR « #5 28R

environment, identifying risks pertaining thereto, and
implementing various controls therein as follows:

Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control Systems
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Control Systems, then provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses
the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope
and findings of the review on the Control Systems
will be reported to the Audit Committee annually;

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensure
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maintenance of proper accounting records that EESN R AR EE g5
are in compliance with the applicable laws, % DURH A M B E MR R
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable FA R,/ SN2
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication;

i. Management information system and technology: iii. BEEMRGREAM @ Z6EHE

To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Group’s business such as inventory, products and
customer relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system, under
which permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems;
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Vi.

Vii.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on regular
basis;

Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts the management promptly of any deviations.
Benchmarking with historical database and
comparisons with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities;

Safeguarding of assets: Regular physical count
of inventories, daily cash, movie vouchers and
ticket exchange coupons for each cinema with
reconciliation of report generated from the ticketing
system are performed by Finance and Accounts
Department and reviewed by Internal Audit
Department; and

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of cinema business segment to
ensure the service quality.

Financial Control

Vi.

Policies, procedures and systems are in place to
ensure proper accounting records are maintained
which provide complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information;

Financial budget and forecast of cinema operation
is prepared and reviewed regularly to ensure any
action can be taken to mitigate any changes in
conditions and market accordingly;

Financial management reports are provided to
all Directors and senior management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

Operational reports on revenue, debtors’ ageing
and internal financial analysis are prepared to
the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s operation
performance;

Available fund report and cash flow forecast are
reviewed to monitor the cash flows of the Group; and

Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
and individual companies’ financial statements are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations.
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(4) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for
the attention of the Board. The Board shall make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board
in order to ensure the Group is in compliance with all
the applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations;
and to keep up on any legal developments;

Continuing Connected Transaction Compliance
Committee is established to monitor, control
and regularly review connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;
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iv. Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide iv. BIERBEEK STATERREE
reporting channels and guidance for employees and FERERABERTRNBRES
related third parties who have business dealings =H (P RHER) B H 2R
with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to RiERES UWREREZHNTE
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, about KABAINEMATRAEBITH
any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the NERIEHE T HESZREN
Company. The Audit Committee, delegated by the EZEECRERELBELHE
board, shall ensure that proper arrangements are in PUA T R L 58 E P i B B E e
place for fair and independent investigation of any SR IRENBEEREITE) ) WIED
concerns raised, appropriate follow up actions are AEBENER MEHAEMES ;
taken and other recommendations are provided, if
thinks fit;

v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline v. HIEREFEER U AEEY

the Group’s zero-tolerance stance against
bribery and corruption and assists employees in
recognising circumstances that may lead to or give
the appearance of being involved in corruption or
unethical business conduct, so as to avoid such
conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly
seek guidance where necessary or report any
reasonably suspected case of corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management through an
appropriate reporting channel; and
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Vi.

Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedures establishes the
general framework for combating crime against
money laundering and financing of terrorism. It
provides guideline to combat money laundering
and terrorist and help the Group’s employees
identify and assess clients/customers/suppliers/
vendors/contractors/transactions/activities of high
risk of money laundering, terrorist financing or other
financial crime and take appropriate measures and
actions.

Review of Internal Control

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal Audit
Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans should be reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board on timely basis.

C. Risk Management
(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk identification,
evaluation, management and control measures.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and the management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

\\\M/,

Risk elimination — The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — The management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood,
velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring — It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks.
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e Risk retention — The management may decide e HFRAKMKTF-ZSEENHEEE
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is at 10 R B 5 AR B M e [ B B T
acceptable level and no action is required and the S E B BFREEAIFE > U
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk EA R G SRR —B0 > S
management program to ensure the level of risk BEEREARUEBERARAS -
does not increase to an unacceptable level. ERAER KT o

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (2) EXEMRKE

REEC BB R R AT E 2 T
METEARR ANEBMEENZS
BARBEREMER FERR T
SRR SIT

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

1.

Occurrence of disaster events:

“Act of God”, fire, natural disasters (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as Covid-19, SARS, Ebola
or Avian Flu happening could have adversely effect
on the Group’s business and reputation.

e Ensure all safety measures as required by
the governments in different jurisdictions such
as mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Malaysia are fully implemented.

o Keep update on development of disaster events
and follow the instructions and guidances given
by the local governments so as mitigate the
impact of the events to the Group.

e  Fire-proof material is used for cinema’s
renovation, exit lighting signboards, escape
route and fire extinguishers are put in a proper
place in the Group’s cinemas.

e Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our
staff in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

e Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and
a quick reference guide for departments’ use
in order to assist the Group to respond and
recover from these disasters quickly.
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Competition in China theatrical market:

There is intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theaters
in mainland China as well as internet broadcasting
platform becoming more popular, especially with 5G.
No assurance that demand in the film screening will
increase in line with or outpace the supply of new
cinemas.

Dedicate to provide a premium theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinemas
with the advanced visual and audio technology
to sustain its competitiveness.

Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social
media platforms from time to time in order to
attract more audiences.

Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services.

Before commencement of a new site, market
analysis and projections are prepared by
Business Development Team and assessed by
Operation Team and the management.

Diversify film exhibition business in different
markets like mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia.

Competition in entertainment business:

Film exhibition business is highly competitive as it is
subject to the availability and popularity of alternative
form of entertainment. There is no assurance that

t

he Group will sustain its competitiveness in the

entertainment industry successfully.

Periodically review and adjust the business
strategic plans to cope with the competition.

Diversify the Group’s entertainment business
and expand its film exhibition business in due
course.

Inherent risk on entertainment business:

Entertainment business including cinema operation
is inherently risky since it relies on the economic
success of any motion picture and the revenues
generated from this business depend primarily on
each film’s public acceptance and its popularity,
which cannot be predicted with certainty.
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e Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences and adjust
business strategic plans to cope with these
changes.

Cinema location and rental expenses:

Cinema rental expense is always a key cost
component of the Group. A significant fluctuation of
cinema rents may affect the Group’s profitability.

e Rental negotiation with landlord by senior
management to ensure the rental costs are
within budget.

e  Explore cinema locations with good potential at
reasonable level.

e  Perform profit forecast to assess its financial
viability.

* Negotiate with landlords for granting rent
concessions during the period of Covid-19
pandemic.

Legal and regulatory changes:

Cinema operation is subject to approvals from
various government bureaus and is required
to obtain relevant licences before business
commencement. Cinemas need to comply with laws
and regulations in an ongoing basis during operation.
Governments may order cinemas to close under
exceptional situation. Failure to comply with the
relevant rules and regulations will have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s operation and image.

e Stay alert on the new development of the
government policies, practices, relevant laws
and regulations in different countries and make
timely response thereto, including change of the
Group’s existing strategies or policies.

e Legal advice is sought (if required) to ensure
that all requisite licences and approvals are
obtained.

e Training for the operation units so as to increase
their awareness of the new developments so
that they can be prepared and respond to the
new developments.
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o Review policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements regularly.

e Constantly monitor for compliance with updated
checklists.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee and
the Board, upon reviewing the Control Systems, were not
aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas of the Control
Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings attributable
to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors as
stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements
for business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but
not limited to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and
the Bye-laws of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy (available on
the website of the Company) sets out the strategies, practices and
commitment for maintaining ongoing and effective communication
with Shareholders, both individual and institutional, and in
appropriate circumstances, the investment community at large
so as to enable them to engage with the Company and exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. To this end,
the Company strives to ensure that all Shareholders have ready
and timely access to all publicly available information of the
Group. To facilitate communication with Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company has established various
communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding of AGMs
and special general meetings (“SGM(s)”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company’s
website at https:/www.EmpCulture.com; (iv) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with investors and
analysts on a regular basis and participating in investor road show
and sector conference.

\48 :
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Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholder and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of
this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for AGM is sent
to Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting and
notices of other general meetings are sent to Shareholders at
least 14 clear days before the meetings. The Chairperson of the
Board and the chairperson/members of the Board Committees,
appropriate management executives and the independent auditor
are available to attend the general meetings to answer questions
from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting explains the procedures
for conducting a poll voting during the meeting.

The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders’
Communication Policy has been properly in place during the Year
and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(i) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for
attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.
Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not
more than 2 months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them may themselves convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than 6 weeks before the meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than 1week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided
that an AGM is called for a date 6 weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited within
the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to
the Investor Relations Department of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing Rules and
the applicable laws of Bermuda; (ii) providing the flexibility to the
Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings (including
allowing the general meetings to be held as a hybrid meeting or
an electronic meeting in addition to a physical meeting); and (iii)
making other consequential and housekeeping amendments, the
Company adopted a new bye-laws (“New Bye-laws”) during the
Year. The adoption of the New Bye-laws was approved by the
Shareholders at 2022 AGM. The New Bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs.
Ernst & Young is independent and had recommended the Board to
propose its re-appointment as the Company’s independent auditor
at the 2023 AGM. During the Year, Ernst & Young has rendered
audit services and non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

EEEREX M

() E TR B RER R AR &k
;5 (INARRBDERTREAGHREHEDE
(BERBEIREIN BFRRAGUESEH
HEFEZEHIVET) 5 K(ili) FHEMAERE KA
BES] » A RBNAFEERMIT AT MR (TR
SIAHAN ) - REREN2022FRRBFERG LHEE
PR A B MR ¥ A B AR R B ST Fr Re AR A
EAEIEER

AP WA E YL

BEREZEGERERBERZENRIREE
IZEREN 2 I > LU REB AR G M BT B2
P EBMERBERE - BEREEGZMERRD
E/NSIPR 2R Gl e =Rl Ao - Nl
WEHREFEGN2023FRRBFAG LEHE
FEB/RAB 2B - NAFE > WKG
STENEF P B R A S BIRHEZRB R IFBIZR
%o MAEEEN BN FRZMEHTIMT

Audit services

BILIRTS

Non-audit services

FEEZIRTS
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

\\fzw
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Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

FARREILEIE(F

RITELBIT T ARS TR BELE S T
WRZEEIBOMENE R BIERELESE
RN EE- mﬁ%’ﬁﬁwgﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ
AEE TR GRS B RREAER R AR R MR
STRBEIIET © Kﬁﬂh%ﬁ&fmm%’@%
B TN EIEPIATIIER  SBNZ GRS
BRERBZERREHT AR

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

ME - BB RI[EUREREEEZRBETE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU
Assets”) with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$428,759,000 and HK$762,733,000, respectively.
122023 6H30H ) SEEYZE BB RERE (THYE-
e kRE) LR EEE ((EREEE)) ZREE
D RN#I#428,759,0008 7% 762,733,00078 7T ©

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for PP&E and ROU Assets at the end of
each reporting period and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Impairment is determined by assessing
the recoverable amounts of the respective cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs to which
the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate and whether
the respective recoverable amounts of the CGUs or
groups of CGUs are less than their respective carrying
amounts. As at 30 June 2023 and other times when such
an indicator existed during the year, the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs had been determined
by management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs and
applying respective discount rates which reflected the
risks relating to the respective CGUs.
EEENRSREPRENETRETROEMER > 57
EME - -RERREURCERAEEERSEETERRE
PR BENDBEBTHEASYE - HBRREURER
REERRzRRTELBU(IREELEENM ) SRS
ELBEUMERNZPINE R E MREReEL BN
TEFBAAAFERAZIREEEESENKES B
EEEE - 102023F6 B30 R AFEFEXZENRHN
Ht5/E SREEL BN WEEE T REREER
RERARREELBUNFERESRERAUR R RE
ReEdBUARRRZMRENEREBESEET
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We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
of PP&E and ROU Assets. The key procedures we
performed on evaluating the methodology, assumptions
and estimates used in the impairment assessment
included, inter alia, the following:

KT T EEEHYE KB RREBEURERESE
Z/}TTEE;TE $TTHCD${EDZ£/W{ED¥TEFE%E/Z 1EX
AL RN RREZIZEFEFE(HREE) UTE
15 .

e we assessed the key assumptions and estimates
used in management’s discounted cash flow
projections, including, inter alia, budgeted/forecasted
revenue and results of operations, growth rates and
discount rates;

FTHME TR EEERRRERETEAPEHAZE
RERR & B1F (HPEeRE) B8 TEARA K
REEB IBRERAERE

e we obtained an understanding of the current and
expected future developments of the respective
CGUs and factors that might affect the key
assumptions and estimates of the respective cash
flow projections and the discount rates applied;

Al Ko TR AR ZRAY

Redis

KITHRTEARSREELBUE
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Key audit matters (continued)

FISREIXFIA (F

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

ME - WBRJ[EUREREEEZRBETE (&

The impairment testing of PP&E and ROU Assets
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
PP&E and ROU Assets and related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Uncertainties
about certain of these assumptions and estimates
are particularly significant due to the current uncertain
economic outlook and market demand. The outcome
of impairment assessment could vary significantly if
different assumptions and estimates were applied.

ME- -HERREUARGERESEZRENHEZEE
[E 1R L FIVER ~ (5T R fRa2 » s FHIE st RRRERE
FREMBRERPYE KBERREURERESENZE
R AR ER - A BRTASE AT = i H KA
Bl ZERBRMAFZAERERZLEEKR - HEXAT
BINRE Kfdst  BETERERIEEERAER

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant accounting
judgements and estimates required in determining the
recoverable amounts.

MR EREEGRZSHER BEEIWRESEFTEZER
BRGHHE AL AT IR NN EEEE-

The related disclosures about significant accounting
judgements and estimates and information about
impairment of PP&E and ROU Assets are included
in notes 3, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

MERAE R & 5t H B et 5t AR 2 ~ 123 e s B LA R f0
RAESEZ REEMZREER DB N GREMBERE
MIzE3 ~ 135214
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we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used and
certain key assumptions and estimates made by
management, with reference to market and/or other
relevant information; and
RITAEBEEER B RITE2E IS K S HEME
BRI sHMEEIERE PR A A URFr R & T AR
RERH A K

we assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

FITHE T R EM B RRPBRENTEE
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

\56 :
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’'s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 September 2023

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

%g%ﬁ%&ﬁé%%ﬁ%Z%&

o SHERAMBRENEBZR REBRA
T AERBER URGAHERERS
BATHRME ZHAMZZRES

e B EEERZRERNEFIINYFTE
FHERIE & B B I EIZ&R LR S M5
BREXRER -KATRESESE BERH
71 BEENBERZIF-STAR/ETZE
ZERAEEEEE

FTHRBIZZEGER T SEMBZHE - KHE
LHBERBRERS  ERTESZPHER
A EBEERIBIE R E KGR o

FTERNBZEZEGRIEH  RAXTENS
BB MRNAERERER LRKNEBRER]
FERIBMARED A G R EATE I MBI ARIEMN
HBIE URAEBEANBER T S HREE M
PRENBVITEY S ARRARY B SR HE A ©

FTIBBRBELEZEGEE  HMEARRESMT
BREZIFNRERRR AFREZER
FRIEERIVER A B ARIKEILEREN (7
BEFHNBERT) RATRARELEEEAIFIE
BN RERRBEARNBILFFRAE D
MABTERS P FLUREE » BRIAITEELEED
wWEPIE SRR

HEXRBIZEEMRENEZEE B ASRA
¥ o

KB EETE AT
HEGSTED
etV
EEIEITIR
Nt —EE2712
2023%9428H

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 FE R




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
memk

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

REVENUE KA 5 306,713
Cost of sales HEMA (127,717)
Gross profit E7 178,996
Other income and gains Htg A Uiz 6 9,866
Gain relating to leases, net HEAER P8 14(d) 36,586
Selling, marketing and other cinema operating §5& « IR # B K H thElfr e @R

expenses (313,811)
General and administrative expenses —RRATHR S (53,709)
Other expenses, net Hthf %% (10,066)
Finance costs IEID®N 8 (62,946)
Share of losses of joint ventures BLEEREBE (3,318)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PIRATRS IR 7 (218,402)
Income tax expense PRSI 11 -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEHE (218,402)
Attributable to: FEML -

Owners of the parent BREEBA (201,379)

Non-controlling interests RS (17,023)

(218,402)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BARAEERFEAEGLER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE E518

PARENT \
Basic and diluted BAR &S 12 HKS$(0.06)78 7T

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F R




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FmEZEWER

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERE (218,402)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hth2mEWE  (§518)
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that — *EERIRI A EFr 7 4EE8m 2
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BthemEKe~ (B18)
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences: ERELE
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINER 2 B AERR
foreign operations
Release of exchange fluctuation RKEBINEFS S RE T AR
reserve for loss of control of a BREE S0 R B (1
foreign operation 31

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR HFE2mHESi84E%E

THE YEAR (219,785)
Attributable to: FEf -

Owners of the parent FREEBA (203,151)

Non-controlling interests FEIEp (16,634)

(219,785)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

30 June 2023 2023FE6H30H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LER - Y 13
Right-of-use assets ERAREE 14(a)
Prepayments, deposits and other FERR s R H AU

receivables 19
Investments in joint ventures REeEgEhEZRE 15
Total non-current assets B EEEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =8 17
Trade receivables B Z IR 18
Prepayments, deposits and other FERR s R H A EUR

receivables 19
Amounts due from joint ventures W& ERIE 34(c)
Financial assets at fair value through profit IZ/A nBEst ABH 2 SHEE

or loss 16
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 20
Total current assets TMENEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES it =R
Trade payables, other payables and B EMR - HtEA R ESt

accruals & 21
Contract liabilities BHaE 22
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMBEER

borrowings 23
Lease liabilities HES®R’ 14(b)
Amounts due to related companies FERAEABIFIA 34(b)
Amount due to a joint venture e —MEaEhERE 34(c)
Amount due to non-controlling interest e IR R e T TR IE 34(e)
Total current liabilities TENBEREE
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB (EPEE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT mEERAREEE

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENAE
Provisions e 24
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMBEER

borrowings 23
Lease liabilities HESs®R’ 14(b)
Total non-current liabilities JETREN A EARRE
Net liabilities BEFEH

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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555,973
1,001,020

60,431
13,432

1,630,856

2,989
17,653

34,443

5,850
117,412

178,347

117,160
43,102

20,018
183,083
3,249
250
70,225

437,087
(258,740)

1,372,116

64,695

452,476
1,186,643

1,703,814
(331,698)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

30 June 2023 2023FE6H30H

EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the BATIEE AELEDS
parent
Issued capital BT 26 32,133
Reserves B 28 (265,585)
(233,452)
Non-controlling interests FEIERGHE (98,246)
Total equity RETS4R%E (331,698)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Mr. Wong Chi Fai
BEIER L BESERE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEXR

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HEFE

A1y 2021 RADIETALR RIB 9126 B B 750 S OMA %%E (%) 505
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - 01379 (01379 (17029 (218402)
Other comprehensive ~ EEE{H2ENE/

income{oss) for he year: (&%)

Exchange diferenceson A EESNERZ

translaton of foreign ERER

operations - - - - (1772) - - (1772) 39 (1,383)
Total comprehensive loss for EE2 B4

the year - - - - (1772) - 01379 (208151) (16,634)  (219,785)
Business combination under 5T 2 £554 4

common ol 3 - - - - - (22 - (0257 (@900 (209260
Changemownership B AFMERERED

interest of subsiiaries - - - - - (6,910) - (6910) 51,238 44328
At30 June 2022 200268308 RIN I ' SEE 5L (I (LIGI6  B4) (B2 (316%)
A1y 2022 KNDETALE
Loss for the year FEFE

Othercomprehensive ~ EEEM2ANE/
incomel(loss) for the year: (&)
Exchange diferenceson ~ EENER 2
translaton of foreign EREE
operations
Relaseofexchange  RAEEINERA]
fluctuation reservefor  EMERERFH
loss of control of @ i
foreign operation 3

Tota comprehensive ~ EE2ENE/(58)
income(loss) for the year %
Loss of control of a RE-HNEARZ
subsidiary il 3
At 30 June 2023 1202365305

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated debit reserves * L EHEHERMARGESHERIRZGEESNRES
of HK$600,413,000 (2022: HK$265,585,000) in the consolidated 600,413,000 75 (20224 : 265,585,000787T) ©
statement of financial position.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEREFHZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax BRI AIAS IR (218,402)
Adjustments for: FHEIEF .
Finance costs IR0 %:iN 8 62,946
Interest income FEUA 6 (2,848)
Share of losses of joint ventures LGS EER 3,318
Covid-19-related rent concessions from  ZKEHEA Z HiEHmHES
lessors MERENHEEE R 14(b) (49,354)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair ZA RN EEABHZZSHE
value through profit or loss, net EZAREERGFEE 7 (1,011)
Depreciation of property, plant and M B REREZITE
equipment 7 89,637
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEZITE 7 117,838
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HE)¥ R RBHE
equipment E518 7 -
Reversal of impairment of trade 08 Z B ZRE
receivables 7 -
Gain on lease modifications AEETZ W 7 (66,258)
Impairment of property, plant and ME B RREZBE
equipment 7 11,077
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREBEEZRE 7 29,672
Loss on loss of control of a subsidiary KE—BRBRBEEGIEZER 7 -
(23,385)
Increase in inventories FEIE (192)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 eI N (8,034)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and  FE{f 71 ~ &5 K ELfhFELUR R
other receivables B 8,435
Increase in amounts due from joint R & 1 = FIEE 0
ventures -
Decrease in financial assets at fair value 1ZAREEFT AR
through profit or loss TRAE AR 650
Increase in trade payables, other payables B 5 FE{x ~ EMFE FU%
and accruals FESHE ABIG M 16,139
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities ~&#&E1E N, GEirl) 5,427
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  FE{TREE A B ERIEL N, CRiZL)
related companies (6,873)
Increase in an amount due to non- &S FEHE AR 2 TR IR G N
controlling interest -
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating KRB (FIR?) & EE =
activities REREFHE (7,833)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
" _\éiﬁuﬁblbiﬁ

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREETHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received BWFIE
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEE W2 « 1428 R HTER

equipment
Business combination under common HEEHI T2 2B a5 H

control 30
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUBGE AR—EHNB AR 31
Advance of loans to joint ventures e hEREENR
Net cash flows used in investing ARKEEH RS REFRE

activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEETHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
New bank loan MERITEM 13,000
Increase in other loan Hh &g 202,000
Repayment of other loan BEEMENR (31,889)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMRAESID (36,446)
Interest portion of lease payments FRESEFEZD )
Interest paid BEFE )
Net cash flows from/(used in) ®B,/ (AR MEEH

financing activities REREFEE 133,083
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R&£RIRS %@L, Grl)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYz2RERIREEZEY

beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EZRE&iE > &/ 2528

net
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XZHEERFEEZEY

THE END OF THE YEAR 117,412

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERREEBMEEDR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RIRIT4EF 117,412

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March 1992 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of operation is located at 28th Floor, Emperor Group
Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the Group was primarily involved in the following principal
activities:

e  cinema operation
e investments in films

The immediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
Culture Group Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

In the opinion of the directors, Albert Yeung Entertainment
Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment Holdings”), which
is incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate holding company
of the Company, and AY Entertainment Holdings is wholly-
owned by Alto Trust Limited, being the trustee of Albert
Yeung Entertainment Discretionary Trust, a discretionary trust
founded by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Yeung”).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

AFREEER
BEX(CEXEMARAD(ERE) A
—RIR 199243 B2 B EREIRIEE RiE
19814 A )54 (AZAET) SEM AR I 2 24
BIRAT

KRBRPEESBHERGMERA T
(TEARXPR)) EHe A AR EMPERE AL
7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda » EF E2&iEHh
HAEBETHEFE288FREEE P
28t&

RAB AREERAT N AEEAERT
BREUTEEER

- BREE

i
D]]Q'

A

° B R ?X,

A

RABZEERERABANEBEYES
(TEBELES) EMAIINREXEE
FERIERARAF -

EERR NEBEUESEAMMILZIEE
PRIRSEIEIR B R A B (M52 R AEIERR )
AENBZ REER AT B3 IR EE
B& EBAlto Trust LimitedfE &Albert Yeung
Entertainment Discretionary Trustz 5t
ANEBHA -zZWEEEEBZREL (15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HE2023FE6H30HILEFEE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. A REESHE (&

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries BERMBARZEN
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as NABIETERBATIZZHBEWNT .
follows:

Emperor Cinemas Group Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
REFHEERRAT RERYEE IESH RERR
Emperor Cinema Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Cinema operation
AEEXHEERRAT &8 1E7 BR2E
Emperor Cinemas Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Cinema operation
HEBFHERAT BH 1E7 BRgE
Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
HSEFW (FE) AR &8 2B REER
Emperor Cinemas (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Cinema operation
H2ETH () ARAE e 25,0002 B2
Emperor Cinemas (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. ~ Malaysia MYR100,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(Note (iv)) ERAD 100,000FRAELE BlrEE
H2BT (FRAD) BRAR (W)
Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Film investments
BRERAT &8 1E7 E¥RE
Tale Success Limited BV US$2 - 100% Investment holding
RERYEHE JES RERR
Emperor Cinemas (Anhui) People’s Republic RMB32,800,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes (i) and (ii)) of China (‘PRC’)/ AER32,800,0007 BT E
HEEYN (ZH BRAR (W()&(i)  Mainland China
hE\RLHE
(e ),/ eIy,
Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China RMB95,000,000 (Note (i) - 100% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes (j) and (ii) P& /*PERH ER95,000,0007% (Hfz#(i) SA=iE

REFTH O6R) BRAT (e () R (i)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HLEEE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREBRER (£

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBARZER (&
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KABETEMBABTIZEFBENOT | (&

follows: (continued)

Emperor Cinemas (Chongging) PRC/Mainland China RMB33,000,000 (Note (v)) - 100% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes (j)and (ii)) T8/ HERH AER33,000,0007 BlTEE
H2BYH (BB BRAR ()R i) ()
Emperor Cinemas (Chengdu) PRC/Mainland China RMB23,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes () and (ii)) &,/ HERH AER23,500,0007 BlTEE
HEBI (W) BIRAE (A2 ()& i)
Emperor Cinemas (Shenyang) PRC/Mainland China RMB15,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Company Limited (Notes (j) and (ii) & /*hE R AEH15,500,0007 A=
HETHNR (B BIRAR (L) & (i)
Emperor UA Cinemas Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 70% Investment holding
(‘Emperor UA") & 10%71 RERR
ARRBEYHARAF (HEEUA)
Notes: fitst -
(i) These are limited liability companies established in the PRC. (i) ZERBARFPEMRILZABREEAF
(i) The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor (i) ZABEEHREBFH (ER) BRABZEME
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited including its branches K> GEENDATEEBEZHMIER)BRAE
comprising of Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited FHRED AT - EHEBFH (JER) BRAT
(Shenzhen Futian Branch) (E 2 E & (6 R) SR 25 % FND AT HREEBRHIER) BRATEM
@M D AF)), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited DA BEBRW (IR BRABIFRIEH
(Shenzhen Branch) (R EBF WM (I R) ER A B FINHA EENAB HEEXWIER) BRATMHLWL
B]), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Ganzhou DABNHEBEXH (JER)EBRATEDLSA
Branch) (RE2 BF (L R) BR QB M QF), Emperor EHEEEH(IR) BRATREH AT
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Shenzhen Futian Huafu HEEEWILR) BRASMER I AT K
Branch) (REEX M (L R) BRABRIIGHEEH A F), HEBW AR BRATRINEZD AT

Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Foshan Branch)
(HEBEHUIER) BRAEHFHLSDAE), Emperor Cinemas
(Beijing) Company Limited (Changsha Branch) (22881 (Jk
R) BRATENS/AF), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company
Limited (Chengdu Branch) ((RE2EFH (IER) BRABMA DA
&), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Chengdu
Jinjiang Branch) (R2E & (ER) BRABMREBETIHAR),
and Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Shenzhen
Baoan Branch) (REEB& I R BRABFRINELZDRE) .

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H308LEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iiiy The English names of these entities and entities disclosed
elsewhere in this note to the consolidated financial statements
that are registered in the PRC and their branches are directly
translated from their Chinese names as they do not register
any official English names.

(iv) The Chinese name is for identification purpose only.

(v) The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor
Cinemas (Chongqing) Company Limited including its branch
comprising of Emperor Cinemas (Chongging) Company Limited
(Jiangbei Branch) (E2EEL (EE) BRAEIIEDAF) .

During the year, the Group lost its control over an indirect
70%-owned subsidiary, Emperor UA Cinemas (Guangdong)
Company Limited (3EEIREF 7 (ER) BIRAF) (‘Emperor
UA (Guangdong)’), primarily engaging in cinema operation,
as further detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group, or are significant investment holding companies
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

\\\%W

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial assets which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 5%k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 1EREE (iF

The Group had loss before tax for the year of HK$317.0
million (2022: HK$218.4 million) and net current liabilities
and net liabilities as at 30 June 2023 of HK$263.9 million
(2022: HK$258.7 million) and HK$571.1 million (2022:
HK$331.7 million), respectively. The Group's net cash flows
from operating activities for the year were HK$69.8 million.
The Group's net loss for the year included certain non-cash
depreciation and impairment losses in an aggregate amount
of HK$357.3 million (2022: HK$248.2 million). The Group had
cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2023 of HK$82.0
million (2022: HK$117.4 million).

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (Covid-19) had disrupted
the business operations and developments of the Group in
prior years and detrimentally affected its historical results and
financial and liquidity positions. Against this backdrop, the
Group was able to turn around and recorded a 48.7% increase
in revenue to HK$456.2 million during the current year as
compared to the prior year, reflecting an 81.7% increase in
revenue of its business operations in Hong Kong to HK$295.8
million and a 9.0% increase in revenue of its business
operations in Mainland China to HK$134.0 million. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, such increases were mainly
attributable to a recovery of the Hong Kong market, and a
progressive improvement of business operations/developments
of certain cinemas of the Group in Mainland China.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to
the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and
the ability of the Group to attain growth and cash positive
operations in the near future. Measures of active cost-saving
and financial resources improvement to streamline/enhance
the Group’s existing operations and to focus on improving
the financial resources of the Group have been implemented/
contemplated by the Group to control its operating expenses
and cash outflows in the current and coming years and to
enable the Group to revitalise itself to take advantage of any
growth opportunities in the near future (the “Cost-saving and
Improvement Measures”).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 1R EE (12

\70 :

As part of such Cost-saving and Improvement Measures, in
November 2022, Emperor UA, being the sole shareholder
of Emperor UA (Guangdong), as well as the shareholders
of Emperor UA respectively resolved to cease the entire
operation of Emperor UA (Guangdong) (the “Cessation of
Emperor UA (Guangdong) Business Operation”), to early
dissolve Emperor UA (Guangdong) and to have Emperor UA
(Guangdong) to file an insolvency liquidation application to
the relevant court in Mainland China. Further details of the
application are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. As disclosed in an announcement of the Company
dated 21 November 2022, having assessed the actual
contribution and financial position of Emperor UA (Guangdong)
and external environmental factors, the Group believes that the
Cessation of Emperor UA (Guangdong) Business Operation
will improve the financial position of the Group.

The Group has maintained a long-term loan facility from a
related party in the amount of HK$1,200.0 million (the “Other
Loan Facility”), of which an aggregate loan principal amount
of HK$564.5 million was utilised as at 30 June 2023. The
Group has also maintained a revolving loan facility from a bank
in the amount of HK$20.0 million (the “Bank Loan Facility”),
of which an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$20.0
million was utilised as at 30 June 2023. Further details of these
facilities are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company have evaluated relevant
conditions and events that are known or could be reasonably
forecasted/estimated. Based on such evaluation, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that, in light of
the measures/arrangements contemplated/implemented to
date, including, inter alia, the Cost-saving and Improvement
Measures, and the availability of the Other Loan Facility and
the Bank Loan Facility, the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to satisfy its working capital and other financing
requirements for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, it
is appropriate for the Group to continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 1EREE (iF

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 1R EE (12

\72 B

Basis of consolidation (continueq)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year's consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilites and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 July 2022. As there was no
business combination during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 July 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H308LEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below: (continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 July 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

(d) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets

\74 :

out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other's behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 July
2022. As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group's financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts’ °

Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 —
Compatrative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)? 4

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Supplier Finance
Arrangement?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules’
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3B & {B kAN B BEFS
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply
it on initial application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are currently
expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 (i.e., 1 July 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the
2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants
of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required
to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3B & {B kAN B BEFS
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting
policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users
of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier
finance arrangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in consolidated financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application.
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Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023FE6830HIEFEE
2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3B M B M kAN B BEFS

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREER (Z

STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition HEESHELNFEDFE BTN ES BT
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions ZERSE 125 ST ERGIME R ZE8E 5
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, TBERRESSFEERR Lol 06 SR
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, ERZRXS O HINEEREILIEESTE-
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided I EREEMZER S ELE TR ERERD
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability IEIERIEEE(E BB EHERKREFN) &
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The FEIEMRMIBBEE 2 E BT N2023F181H
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning N7 BBEBNEERSEEREI SN MERAR
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions Fr 2% R AR AR E =1L
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning BESENXR S MERIEstERNZ 0%
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative SRARE RN o e a5 4R AR 2R 10 AN ER %D 45
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of BRI (WEA) o thoh ) 2 H BT gk
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that KiBRAAERNEELELEEEEEMUIINZ
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to THo IR ER LB RNeNER
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations. AR Y RNERNGEMEHmERES
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected FEEATE-

to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar EBGHENFIIR B EERE N
Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception B—F TR ANEHEE S EE
from the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising BARM S 2 B R MmEL 2 Ik
from the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules JERR TERE 50 B 1 B8 2 9 bl 1 B BF B SMNR AE o
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and ZEEETS A AS LT IMETE R L
Development. The amendments also introduce disclosure HM SRR EHER T THRERHE
requirements for the affected entities to help users of the SHMMERzBE 81N E S HIEE
financial statements better understand the entities' exposure AR BB B 5 — S TSR AERA 2 BN
to Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current HAMRIE » U I EEmE B E mmE Nk
tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods EWHARWEE RSk 5Bt E
when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of SHEFRERZ AR EREER2023F181
known or reasonably estimable information of their exposure Hol v BAr FEMAMEENAE — A
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation Bz EEaRINER  BEBREE2023
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. FI2A3IH Z A E R P HREZEE
Entities are required to disclose the information relating to Ko ZHES TN B RERIAMTEIR AT H A E
their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in annual periods B i e BERREESFNERTE -

beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but are not required to
disclose such information for any interim periods ending on or
before 31 December 2023. The amendment is not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFTEGFTBRME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in joint ventures REeEELENKRSE
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the EETCEIE—BEERH BT HEAH
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights BEZEHINTA RS SE P ENBEEE
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the VERREF) o EEIZ4IEULSHHELEZTHE
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, IBZHEN SR B ETARSIHERES
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities PHIENETAO A EE—RRIENRAERZF
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. TEo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in joint ventures (continueq)

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
joint ventures is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in joint ventures.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations, other than business combinations
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2AFTEEFBRME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

\\\&W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in film productions
and unlisted equity securities at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. In testing
a CGU for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual CGU if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H308LEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

0]
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers
of the post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the entities
and persons referred to as related parties in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements are the major categories of
related parties of the Group for the purposes of related party
disclosures in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or ten
years

20% to 33'/3%

10% to 20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

\86 :

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

2AXTEESBRME (&

HE (&)
RERFRRMA ()
(b) HABELE

(c)

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at FVPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and
the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the FVPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
FVPL.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTEGHEBERBE ()
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFXFEGHEBREE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

\\\ézw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group uses a probability of default approach to measure
lifetime ECLs of trade receivables, taking into consideration
the expectations for instruments with similar credit risk and the
credit risk of the debtors, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in

the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of lease arrangements
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the
lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the
expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash
flows and an equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated
over the term of the lease arrangements. The estimated costs
of reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continueq)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

\\\%W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFEZHHBERME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Revenue from box office takings is recognised when the
relevant film is exhibited;

(b) Revenue from the sale of concession goods is recognised
at the point in time when the customer takes possession
of the food and beverage offerings;

(c) Revenue from the sale of other products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the products; and

(d) Revenue from screen advertising is recognised when
the performance obligation is satisfied, generally on a
straight-line basis over the service period of the relevant
agreement or as the relevant services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

RKEFERANZWA (&
EENTESATRREREBEERIR
BEE—FNEARMEN DR AR
WAIRFER E BRRVIR(E ST 8 > W A A S &
2R ZERANRERIEIRMER SR
BREVEAIRKIFTR - ES TR I A EERE
HBE—FNEAY BN DR BRI
RIBESHESHNBA SRR ERMNKEHE
WENaBEREENFEMAX -HIRERY
RELEERS EGE ) m A AR TS 2 BV ERIR B — 5
HLUTHER  XBBERAGRESEMH
REERFISHHNERBE S AMERR
BE DRI B

(a) BERWARBRARRE A S

(b) HFEMBEEZWARERAEZER
ST

() HiERZHEWANEEZRIEE
ERRE (- ERE) FEST

(d) FEESZWARBITSERER —
LB AR BB BRI RFHBRN
IR MARIAR TSR HERT

HAthgA

B AIZE ST EE LB RN KA BIBRA
R T ARG SR RPTER S TR I
FRERREERERER (HSE) EEMIR
EERMEEREDEPFENFRT LFES

ESLNE

EAREEEZERN D RS Z A ULE
ERHNRENEBAR(UREEBE) K

BREHNERE - EXEERBENEITEN
By (B AE B 78 dn S AR PS5 RO IE R B e Ae &
F) > &HEEESEBIEA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 FE R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT EEHBEREE (&
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Payments to retirement benefit schemes in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong and Mainland China are charged
as expenses when employees have rendered the services
entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2QAFTEGHBRME (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than HKS. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into HK$ at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

\100 B

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
el EHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether
or not to exercise the option to renew the leases. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease
term for leases of its cinemas due to the significance of
these cinemas to its operations and the significant leasehold
improvements undertaken (or expected to be undertaken) over
the term of the relevant lease contracts that are expected to
have significant economic benefits for the Group when the
options to extend those leases become exercisable.

Deconsolidation of an entity in which the Group holds
more than a majority of voting rights

As further detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were certain changes in facts and
circumstances during the year resulting in the need for
the Group to reassess whether it still controls Emperor UA
(Guangdong) in which the Group holds more than a majority
of voting rights. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
based on an assessment of the power that the designated
administrator has over Emperor UA (Guangdong), including
the power over relevant financial and operating activities,
under the Enterprise Insolvency Law of the People's Republic
of China and the underlying facts and circumstances, the
Group has lost its control over Emperor UA (Guangdong)
in accordance with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements. Accordingly, the Group has ceased consolidating
Emperor UA (Guangdong) from the date on which the Group
lost the control (the “deconsolidation”).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H308LEFE

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets at the end of each reporting period and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Impairment is
determined by assessing the recoverable amounts of the
respective CGUs or group of CGUs to which the respective
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relate
and whether the respective recoverable amounts of the CGUs
or groups of CGUs are less than their respective carrying
amounts. For the current year, the recoverable amounts of the
respective CGUs or group of CGUs have been determined
by management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs and
applying respective discount rates which reflect risks relating
to the respective CGUs. The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 30 June
2023 were HK$428,759,000 (2022: HK$555,973,000) and
HK$762,733,000 (2022: HK$1,001,020,000), respectively.
Further details are given in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
el EHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits

The provision for ECLs on trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits are based on assumptions about ECLs. The
Group uses judgements and estimates in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the results of the
assessment. Further details about the provision for ECLs on
(i) trade receivables and (ii) deposits and other receivables
are given in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at FVPL

When the fair values of financial instruments at FVPL recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation techniques, including,
inter alia, the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from relevant observable markets/sources
where possible, but where this is not feasible, certain degrees
of judgements and estimates are required in establishing fair
values. The valuation requires management to make certain
judgements, estimates and assumptions about model inputs,
including, inter alia, projected cash flows, discount rate and
other factors. Changes in assumptions and estimates relating
to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. Further details are given in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment, as appropriate. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group generally estimates the
IBR using observable inputs when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H308LEFE

4.

§

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services, and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)
(b)

Cinema operation
Investments in films

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
bank interest income, non-lease-related finance costs as well
as unallocated corporate and other expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
investments in unlisted equity securities included in financial
assets at FVPL and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2023/At 30 June 2023

4.

HE202346H30H L FE 522023568
30H

Segment revenue (note 5)
Sales to external customers

SEWA (Hf5E5)
HWHNERIHE

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Bank interest income

Unallocated corporate and other
expenses

Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities)

papES

#HAR -

RTTAIBUA
REDEEREAMBAS

MBRA(FREEENE
FR5M)

Loss before tax

FRELBIE IR

Segment assets

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated
assets

#HAR -
TERHEMAKBDIEE

Total assets

MEE

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities

SEER
#HAR -
rERHEMAKBEDEE

Total liabilities

mam

Other segment information
Share of losses of joint ventures
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets # B E T E

Hth 3 EER
R EEhFEER
M HERREZINE

Gain on lease modifications HEEs Tz W&
Impairment of property, plant and 43 « {28 & 55 & 2 RiE
equipment
Impairment of right-of-use assets {FFREEE 2 RE
Loss on loss of control of a F AR EGKE S
subsidiary attributable to the NEVETIEZ B8
parent
Investments in joint ventures ReghEZRE
Capital expenditure’ B Y
#  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # EATHEERBYE IS RRE-

equipment.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REREEN (2
(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2022/At 30 June 2022 HZE202286830HLLEFE, 12022568
30H

Segment revenue (note 5) WA (f15E5)
Sales to external customers HINERIHE 306,713 - 306,713
Segment results DEES (205,815) 947 (204,868)
Reconciliation: 77
Bank interest income RITHF B WA 7
Unallocated corporate and other SR 1> K HMFA

expenses (5,110
Finance costs (other than interest B #5miz< (FAE & &5 2

on lease liabilities) BRI (8,501)
Loss before tax bR AR (218,402)
Segment assets DEEE 1,685,648 5,850 1,691,498
Reconciliation: 77
Corporate and other unallocated 12K HAit RN EE

assets 117,705
Total assets EE 1,809,203
Segment liabilities NEaE 1,667,491 50 1,667,541
Reconciliation: 77
Corporate and other unallocated — 1i>% & HAth Ak #H & 1&

liabilities 473,360
Total liabilities == 2,140,901
Other segment information HithoEsEk
Share of loss of a joint venture  fE(EF— & & hEEE 3,318 - 3,318
Depreciation of property, B RREBEITE

plant and equipment 89,637 - 89,637
Depreciation of right-of-use assets # B E T E 117,838 - 117,838
Impairment of property, plant and 4% « 1428 R =5 1 2 &

equipment 11,077 - 11,077
Impairment of right-of-use assets fFREEE 2 FE 29,672 - 29,672
Fair value gains on financial BARBES ABRLE

assets at FVPL MEBEZ ANEBERTE - (1,011) (1,011)
Gain on lease modifications HEET 2 Wa=m (66,258) - (66,258)
Investment in a joint venture R—EEaErEZRE 13,432 - 13,432
Capital expenditure* BAS H 107,699 - 107,699

# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # EATHEEREYE HEARE(BFEA
equipment (including additions related to a common control HEESSHERNAE)
combination).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

Mainland China FR B g 3]
Hong Kong 5&

Macau B

Other region in Asia Pacific ERHEAMME

4.

i B

(a) HINERZIRA

122,925
162,771

20,890
127

306,713

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

Mainland China FRER Py ith
Hong Kong 58

Macau B

Other region in Asia Pacific EARHEAMME

ERBRABER TS RAIEt R EEE

(b) FRBEE

641,924
745,069
170,377
13,055

1,570,425

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes non-current deposits
and other receivables.

Information about major customers

Revenue from transactions with an external customer derived
from the cinema operation segment contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

An external customer

LFHIERBEEB N UEEPREM
AEERMNFIERBIRE R EH M B

=h
N

FERREH
FEAREENER I EA TR EMRA
EEBBAL00%U EZ AT :

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

5. REVENUE 5. KA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: NEBZIWADFAOT :

Revenue from contracts with customers KEZEE&SHAZ WA

Income from cinema operation R BB TS E 2 WA 306,713
Revenue from contracts with customers KBERAEHNZIRA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WAENMHED

Types of goods or services S M RTEEER
Box office takings EERA 270,093
Sale of concession goods T mid e 17,545
Screen advertising services RRESR 6,245
Others Hith 12,830
Total revenue from contracts with REBXREHNZ WAL
customers 306,713
Geographical markets &5
Mainland China FRED P i 122,925
Hong Kong 58 162,771
Macau BT 20,890
Other region in Asia Pacific TARHAMME 127
306,713
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRETNRBRSHVIASHEREIL
recognised in the current reporting period that was RAFREHAA R Z WA TEE -

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Short-term advances received from U{EXZE B %5 HATE(TRIE -
customers:
Cinema operation Bt

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(b) Performance obligations

5. IGA (&
RKEEREHNZBA(E

(b) BHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Box office takings

The performance obligation is satisfied when the film is
exhibited to the customer and payment in advance is
normally required.

Sale of concession goods

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the customer takes possession of the goods and
payment is received upon delivery.

Screen advertising services

The performance obligation is generally satisfied over
time when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits as the Group makes the cinema
available for screening of advertisements over the period
of the arrangement, while certain payments in advance
are normally required.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed because all
the remaining performance obligations are part of the
respective contracts that have an original expected
duration of one year or less.

ERAEBBENSENERBLENT :

FEEKA
BHEBENEREHEELRIER M
h—RBEFRL M

IS

HerEmif &
BHEEREERE P RISE @I U
BIFRIEZ By REIE A ©

BERESRE
EAEERZHHNREHENRRFBE
HHRE BOEE—RNERRERE
B HFEN m RS EREER » B—HR
BIES A TRIE

ERBITHEREZ.  DERERR NENSME
(CREMEER D REM) IR Z BRI
BN EFAR TRANEERRE
SHAR—F XU TGN - -

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

6. HEMUA RUam
HAA Rz 2 AT

Interest income from: FEWAZKE :
— Bank balances —IR1T4ETF
— Deposits paid —BfEE
Government subsidies* B AL
Others Hih

The government subsidies mainly represented subsidies
received by certain subsidiaries from PRC's local government
authorities and subsidies received under the Employment
Support Scheme, Cinema Subsidy Scheme and Food Licence
Holders Subsidy Scheme of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government
subsidies.

Emperor Culture Group Limited EEX({CEXE@BMBRRXA 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #E E2023FE6830HIEFE
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

7. FRIRAIESIR

REEZ RRATBERTLEING /(5T A) T
BIBEH ¢

Cost of inventories sold* BEFEMA 4,276
Depreciation of property, plant and IERY Y =
equipment™* 13 89,637
Depreciation of right-of-use assets** ERESEZITE"” 14(a) 117,838
Auditor's remuneration 1% ELEMEN & 1,920
Lease payments not included in the KRt AHEEGHEZ
measurement of lease liabilities** GEN=ADE 14(c) 2,659
Employee benefit expenses (excluding  EEEFIFX (FEIEEEH
directors’ remuneration (note 9))**: & (BYa9)) ™ -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and other TE e TEA R EAM
benefits far 75,095
Pension scheme contributions BAEEIHMR(AE
(defined contribution schemes)* fHERETE)) 8,503
83,598
Gain on lease modifications” MEETT Z W 14(c) (66,258)
Impairment of right-of-use assets* ERESEZRE" 14(c) 29,672
Impairment of property, plant and ERY - Y A
equipment* 13 11,077
Reversal of impairment of trade B0 8 S REURE
receivables 18 -
Written off of other receivables* i L fh R R -
Loss on loss of control of a subsidiary FRBEELE KB
attributable to the parent* NEEFIREZ B5IR” 31 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEY2E R BB HE >
equipment ggi=| -
Foreign exchange differences, net PER A= FEE 2,538
Fair value gains on financial assets at BRAnBEFABGRZEM
FVPL, net* BEZANEBERRFEE
— Mandatorily classified as such, —saHl o iEA LR
including those held for trading BEFEEERR (1,011)
# Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of # FFAGREBRRRNZ [THERZ -
profit or loss.
* Included in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement * stALZSIEmANZ TEMBISF2E
of profit or loss.
A Included in "Gain relating to leases, net" in the consolidated A ETAGREEGRERAZ TSR EFEE ] -
statement of profit or loss.
#  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group # o ANEBEARTIIEEA R AR FE

*k

as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. At
30 June 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years
(2022: Nil).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$94,149,000
(2022: HK$89,345,000), depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$117,088,000 (2022: HK$116,038,000), lease payments not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities of HK$6,915,000
(2022: HK$874,000) and employee benefit expenses of
HK$71,829,000 (2022: HK$46,093,000) are included in "Selling,
marketing and other cinema operating expenses" in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HLEEE

FINANCE COSTS 8. BAFSALAS
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BTSN Z DAl -

8.

Interest on bank and other borrowings IRITREMEERN R

Interest on lease liabilities HESBNE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=E
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to RIFH R FrsE s EmRA (T EmRA)F
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock BCABMERFINEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () K (f)1&
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) REB(AB (RBEEFEER) RHINEHE2
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of PR AFEEEMEUT ¢

the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees e
Other emoluments: HEN = -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances <&~ TEALBERE
Pension scheme contributions RIRESTEIMER
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BILIEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors KEEIZNTEIERNTESZHESE
during the year were as follows: mE:

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PRIBIS &+

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen AR E

Ms. Tam Sau Ying BEEL LT
There were no other emoluments payable to the RAEE  ETMNEMEX S FTEIL
independent non-executive directors during the year IERMITEEZBNE (20225 © #) o
(2022: Nil).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HE2023FE6H30HILEFEE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEME (&

(b) Executive directors (b) MITES
The fees paid to executive directors during the year were REELZNFFHRTESZHESWT
as follows:

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa ERRR T
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEERE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander HIEEE ST
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes SHmATZ
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RAEE EEERETMTHRE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. KA B REEMAES -
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. L REHES
The five highest paid employees during the year did not RAEAEE AZReHEETASIE(EMNE
include any directors (2022: Nil). Details of the remuneration FEQONE  HE) BRI ANTEEEZLZ
for the year of the five (2022: five) highest paid employees who QOINE: AR) BREiHEEZFEFHINESE
are not a director of the Company are as follows: mr

HEREMEHES R

Salaries and other short-term employee

benefits
Pension scheme contributions RAE B HR
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HINN T BB I EERE I EE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: W

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%87c% 1,500,000 7T

During the year, no emolument was paid or payable by WAREE NEBTERIFEE RS HE
the Group to the non-director highest paid employees as B EMERME (FARS|IINAZ
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EEHNMALER R EEN B EZE
compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). (20224 : 4H) o

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE
11.INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2022: Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the BVI,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda and the
BVI.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for the current and prior years as the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China either had no assessable profits
arising in Mainland China or had available tax losses brought
forward from previous years to offset their assessable profits
generated during the current and prior years.

No provisions for Macau Complementary Tax and Malaysia
Corporate Income Tax have been made as the Group had
no assessable profits arising in Macau and Malaysia for the
current and prior years.

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rate for Hong Kong, in which the principal
place of operation of the Company is located and some of
the Company's principal subsidiaries are domiciled, to the tax
amount at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

11.Frfgis
FEBBELEBHEREHERE L@
RAEERAEEMENEBELETMER
MiaF (20224 © &) o

IRIR B R o R X B SRR KR 5 -
FEBEARERRBRUESERBMNE
RIFffSHR ©

AEERAEERIBEE SRR P EL %
PSR (E R i » LT R A B R Rl
SR BIH B A SRR Pl P E
PRSI T > U AT BB AR B
B RSIE DU A R RAB L S A RO
BRI o

FERBERPIFTSHEER N ERARE
FFTSMIFLEE  WHRRAEERAE
ERiBFFEREORFIRERADELEE
I FEERTEH] o

RANB T EZEEMIERART D EEZM
[BRABFIEMNE B EERE S EEARR
MATEEZ IR R IR A EE BRI KT
BZMESIANIRIT ©

Loss before tax BRIQAIESIE (218,402)

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory BEBETEMREL6.5% (20224F :
tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 16.5%) sTE 2 RIBIE R

Different tax rates enacted by overseas BINE BIERIAERE
authorities

Income not subject to tax BIABANTRIBRIUA

Expenses not deductible for tax ez

Profits and losses attributable to joint B EE X B R EE
ventures

Tax losses not recognised FREERIRIERE

Tax losses utilised from previous periods BT ERRIE &8I FIRIEEE

Others Hih

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate ZAEEBERKE

MIEEER

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME
Year ended 30 June 2023 #HE2023FE6H30HILEFEE

12.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BATEERIEEAELSE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE fEE = i

PARENT
Basic I
The calculation of the basic loss per share amount for B E2023F6R30BEEE EREXRE
the year ended 30 June 2023 is based on the loss for the B RELIRESG AT ZEREE AR E
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of E 2 FE 1 1§55 $8329,939,00078 7T (20224 :
HK$329,939,000 (2022: HK$201,379,000), and the weighted 201,379,000:87T) R AR BN A EE BT
average number of ordinary shares of the Company of SIBRS INREE1980493,213,341,0005% (2022
approximately 3,213,341,000 (2022: 3,213,341,000) in issue £ 1 3,213,341,0008%) st& ©
during the year.
Diluted s
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share AR EE2023FK%2022F6 8300 IEFEZA
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2023 and ERTEREBTHEFE BBITEER
2022 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares O AR B E 2023 FE 5202286 830H
in issue during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. IFFEFRERSREAREBEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.49% - B Rz H

30 June 2023 2023%6H30H

At 30 June 2022: 72022568308 :
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation ~ EFHTERAE

and impairment

Net carrying amount ARERE

At 1 July 2022, net of K20202F7818 10k
accumulated depreciation ~ EstirERAEE
and impairment

Additions HE

Disposals HE

Depreciation provided during 17 E#
the year

Impairment AE

Exchange realignment R A

At 30 June 2023, net of 12023F6A308 » 10f%
accumulated depreciation ~ EstirERAEE
and impairment

At 30 June 2023; 12023E6H308 :
Cost [

Accumulated depreciation  EztrERFE
and impairment

Net carrying amount REFE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 4% - 23 skt (48
(continued)

30 June 2022 2022568308
At 30 June 2021: 12021568308 :
Cost B 93,004 463,160 59,992 174,252 790,408
Accumulated depreciation ~ EFHTERAE
and impairment - (135,444) (36,539) (62,835)  (234818)
Net carrying amount REFE 93,004 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590

At 1 July 2021, net of R021ETRLE  MRE
accumulated depreciation  FHTEE A

and impairment 93,004 327,716 23,453 111,417 555,590
Additions "B - 42,910 8,377 10,419 61,706
Transfers b (92,771) 65,935 4,801 22,035 -
Additions — common control - 7R E — HE I & 6

combination (note 30) (Hf2£30) - 33,588 2464 9,941 45,993
Depreciation provided during EEHTEEE

the year - (52,668) (14,081) (22,888) (89,637)
Impairment BE - (8,963) (605) (1,509) (11,077)
Exchange realignment ERAEE @) (4,243) (205) (2,147) (6,602)

At 30 June 2022, net of 12022668308 » 0%
accumulated depreciation ~ ExtirE KA

and impairment 226 404,275 24,204 127,268 555,973
At 30 June 2022: 1202268308 :

Cost [N 226 741,683 101,464 300,273 1,143,646
Accumulated depreciation ~ EstirERF(E

and impairment - (337,408) (77,260) (173,005) (587,673)

Net carrying amount REFE 226 404,275 24,204 127,268 555,973

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% « M3 Bl (&

\116 B

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

The disruptions to the Group’s business operations and
developments due to the Covid-19 pandemic commenced
in prior years, the Cessation of Emperor UA (Guangdong)
Business Operation during the current year and coupled
with the existing challenging external environment and other
potential developments, directly or indirectly affecting certain
operating units of the Group, have significantly affected the
operating and financial performances of various cinemas of
the Group, as well as their future outlook and developments.
The specific effect of these events, changes in circumstances
and potential developments (collectively, the “Changes in
Circumstances and Potential Developments”) on the
respective cinemas of the Group underpinned the Group’s
impairment reviews during the year or as at the end of the
reporting period. Based on relevant impairment testings of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and
right-of-use assets (“ROU Assets”), the Group recognised
impairment loss for the year arising from the Changes in
Circumstances and Potential Developments of HK$41,169,000
(2022: HK$11,077,000) and HK$103,441,000 (2022:
HK$29,672,000), respectively, in respect of certain PP&E
and ROU Assets which belong/belonged to the Group’s
cinema operation operating segment. The impairment
loss for the year ended 30 June 2023 was determined
based on the recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs
to which those impaired PP&E and ROU Assets relate (the
“Relevant CGUs”), which were their values in use, totalling
HK$332,819,000 (2022: HK$196,233,000), as at 30 June
2023, as further detailed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment testing of the Relevant CGUs

For the Group’s cinema operation operating segment,
impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of each individual cinema, being the CGU to which
the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate. The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets/forecasts covering a five-year period or
the remaining lease term (including any expected renewal
period, as appropriate) of the relevant leased cinema property
(the “remaining lease term”), as appropriate, approved by
management. For certain CGUs, management considers
cash flow projections for impairment testing covering a period
in excess of five years are justified based on (i) the specific
nature of the underlying business (including the growth
potential of each cinema) and particular aspects of the film
exhibition sector; and (i) the industry knowledge and relevant
experience of management in preparing such projections
based on what management considers as reasonable and
appropriate assumptions that represent management’s best
estimate of the range of economic conditions and market
developments that management expects such would exist
over the relevant remaining lease term. For the current year,
the pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
for the Relevant CGUs are in the range of 11.5% to 14.0%
(2022: 11.5% to 13.5%) reflecting specific risks relating to the
Relevant CGUs.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various office and cinema
properties used in its operations. Leases of properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 3 to 15 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts
that included extension options and variable lease payments.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

14. LEASES (continued) 14.f85 (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEBEAEBEA (2
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEEE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEBFERAEEEZEBEBEURRA
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEZEENNT

At 1 July 2021 202147818 1,016,049
Depreciation charge MERX (117,838)
Additions E 91,793
Additions — common control combination RE — HEEIEREH (BYE£30)

(note 30) 140,539
Lease modifications GE=LH) (91,039)
Impairment* BIE* (29,672)
Exchange realignment P& S B2 (8,812)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 72022568300 %2022F7H1H 1,001,020
Depreciation charge TERS (118,356)
Additions B 77,114
Lease modifications HEEET (60,075)
Impairment* BE* (103,441)
Exchange realignment FE AR (83,529)
At 30 June 2023 722023568308 762,733

* Further details regarding the impairment assessment * EEEREEE 2 BEIHNIE—FF
of right-of-use assets are set out in note 13 to the EEHR G S TRRERMEELS ©

consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

14.188 (&

FEEFREBEAN E
(b) MEEHE
AEERESE REEREHNT

Carrying amount at beginning of year &4 Z BREE 1,196,207
New leases WmiEE 85,914
Additions — common control combination 7N & — H[E1E %S 13 (A15£30)

(note 30) 296,452
Accretion of interest recognised during FRHES 2 & E1E N

the year 54,445
Covid-19-related rent concessions from 2k B HFH A Z ¥ ims & 1518

lessors MRS ER (49,354)
Payments (NEN (41,537)
Lease modifications HEET (157,297)
Exchange realignment B R AR (15,104)

Carrying amount at the end of the year FERZ BREE

1,369,726

Analysed into: PARIE:
Current portion mENER D 183,083
Non-current portion JERENEL 1,186,643
Lease liabilities repayable: FENHEARE !
Within one year —&FER 183,083
In the second year - 144,384
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BEELF (BIEEREME) 484,736

Beyond five years AEME

557,523

1,369,726

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain offices and cinema properties during the prior
years.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

14. LEASES (continued) 14.f85 (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEAEKBEAN (E
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) ARAEENBERAER 2 EBUWT -

leases are as follows:

Income and gains/(expenses) WA KW (FR)
Interest on lease liabilities HEa®fE (54,445)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEEITERS

assets (117,838)

Expense relating to short-term leases ERIEEAIAEZ B (G AHE
(included in selling, marketing and Mg EREME TS ER
other cinema operating expenses/ Y/ —RERATER)
general and administrative expenses)

Expense relating to leases of low-value EEEEESEHREAHZBEX
assets (included in selling, marketing (5t ASHE ~ FIIG#EE B HL &
and other cinema operating expenses/ [R=iERIY —HRRITEEY)
general and administrative expenses)

Variable lease payments notincluded KRt AfHESEIEZ &S
in the measurement of lease liabilites ~ {3% (5t ASHE « HIFHEK
(included in selling, marketing and other E fhEfr&iE R~ —iR 1T
cinema operating expenses/general and  E{FEs%)
administrative expenses)

Gain on lease modifications HEEIFT 2 Wa

Covid-19-related rent concessions from R B 4 FH A 2 #7m 5 &2 15 H
lessors WHEER

Impairment of right-of-use assets ERREEZRE

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8% A HESE 2~ 4858

(d) For presentation purposes, "Gain relating to leases, net" (d) #E2E7Ms GeEmaxN HERE
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss AN R RE | BIE LR RIE .

is comprised of:

Gain on lease modifications HEEF T 2 W=
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e)

®

(9

Extension options

The Group has several cinema property lease contracts
that include extension options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned
with the Group's business needs. The future lease
payments relating to periods following the respective
exercise dates of the extension options are included
in the respective lease terms to determine the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of those relevant cinema
properties.

Variable lease payments

The Group has lease contracts for several cinema
properties that contain variable lease payments
based on certain turnover of the Group generated
from the respective cinema properties. There are also
minimum annual base rental arrangements for these
leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable lease
payments paid/payable for the current year for these
leases are HK$101,733,000 and HK$6,520,000 (2022:
HK$29,949,000 and HK$635,000), respectively.

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 32(c) and 33(b), respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HE2023FE6H30HILEFEE

15.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 1I5.REETE¥EZI8E

Share of net liabilities FELEEFEE

Loans to joint ventures e hEREBENR
The loans to joint ventures are unsecured and interest-free. HEEPrXEIEHEFAEIRIPEERE
In the opinion of the directors, the loans are unlikely to be BEDA ZEERINAOEN R BRRE
repaid in the foreseeable future and are considered as part of B TR EARNERNRSE XKL EBIEY
the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures. There was —Zp e meEbEER W EITIREL KA
no recent history of default and past due amounts for loans to HA R IE o 7220236 830H K&2022FE6830
joint ventures. As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the loss H - iR AR S IR E L ARIE o

allowance was assessed by management to be minimal.

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: REFBZGEPEFBOT

H Cinematic Ordinary Hong Kong 50 50 50 Cinema
Limited shares operation
L BB B EiE

Emperor Cinemas Ordinary Hong Kong 50 50 50 Cinema
Plus (TW) Limited shares operation
L BB B EiE

Emperor Cinemas Ordinary Hong Kong 50 50 50 Cinema
Plus (SS) Limited shares operation
EEL BB B EiE

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company. IS ERARATEEER

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

15.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

H Cinematic Limited, which is considered a material joint
venture of the Group, is primarily involved in cinema operation
and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of H Cinematic Limited adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements.

I5.REEREZRE(E)

H Cinematic Limited# R A KEEZE K
FEPE TENSFEFEE  wMAERE
N

TRMIH Cinematic Limited Z BAF5E &}
BE TRt BERZEAE=EEHAE
WA LR SRR BREEHER

Cash and cash equivalents

RERFEEFEY

Other current assets HMReh&EE
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets ERBEE 133,624
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and THAE(FaEEa K
other payables HAETRIR)
Other current liabilities HiRgh&as
Current liabilities mEEE

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding
trade and other payables

FFREBERasE FTeEEs &

HnpERFUE) 125,011

Net liabilities

BfEFEE

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the
joint venture:

FEBREGEEE I E@AR -

Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEBERRELLBY
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE
Revenue WA

Depreciation e

Interest expense FERMZ

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

FEHEREEBEBE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

15.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Emperor Cinemas Plus (TW) Limited, which is considered
a material joint venture of the Group as at 30 June 2023, is
primarily involved in cinema operation and is accounted for
using the equity method.

I5.REEREZRE(E

Emperor Cinemas Plus (TW) Limited#?
2023F6 A3 0HERARER CEAEGE R
¥ > FENEEMEE WA EAARK

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Emperor Cinemas Plus (TW) Limited
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

TERAIEmperor Cinemas Plus (TW) Limited
ZHBERBE U EBERZEmE
BEEHAR TRESHBRR 2 REEY
IRoe

statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

RERFEEFEY

Other current assets HMReh&EE

Current assets MBEE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other TMEE (FaEE 2 REMENRIR)
payables

Other current liabilities Hitwmshas

Current liabilities mEaE

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and JEFEIEMAEE (FEEEZ &
other payables HAERIR)

Net liabilities B&EF%E

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint KEBNREGEPE AR
venture:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEEBEBRELLA

Carrying amount of the investment KRERAE

Revenue WA

Depreciation e

Interest expense FERZ

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

FEBEREEBEBEE

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TREMKAREB Z WAEARSESTE U
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not material: BHiRIELE

Share of the joint venture’s profit for the year

Share of the joint venture’s total comprehensive
income

Carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the
joint venture

DMEEEREZFEET

DMEEEREZ2EIALER

FEBRGEEEZREZREE
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PRSI

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted investments in film

Unlisted investment in a former

BE

productions, at fair value

BRE BARMEE

subsidiary, at fair value

FLHBERERE BAR

16.%’&%%15%1‘)\?5%&23%%?

FE LR —FERIME AT Z

(a)
(b)

5,850

5,850

Notes:

(a)

Unlisted investments in film productions

The Group’s investments in film productions as at 30 June
2023 and 2022 are mandatorily classified as financial assets at
FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments
of principal and interest.

In prior years, the Group entered into several investment
agreements to invest in several film production projects, which
entitle the Group, among others, the rights to share the net
profit or loss of the respective films attributable to the Group,
as appropriate, in accordance with the terms of the respective
investment agreements.

The Group measured, at initial recognition, the cost of these
investments based on the cash consideration for these
investments.

All the underlying film productions had been completed and the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period represented
the fair value of the estimated net future cash flows from these
films attributable to the Group.

Unlisted investment in a former subsidiary

As further detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group lost its control over Emperor UA
(Guangdong) (the “former subsidiary”) during the year.
Accordingly, in accordance with HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Group recognised any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value when control
was lost and has subsequently accounted for it as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

17.INVENTORIES

Inventories mainly comprise food and beverages,
consumables and other goods relating to the Group’s cinema
operation.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R

et

(a)

JEEMEHRIFRE

REMMN2023F K%202256 8300 2 BEBUE
REBRBIDEBRAABEFSABRZ SRE
B UHHARESHNREREBIFEINEERK
FE e

REMER ZEETUETRERH UK
BERETERXRFER  HPRESHKRER
FOER cEEEE (AP EE) ZA455EH
FEME 2 ZEE 0P 18 ER) ©

FERRTEEIBREZSFRECRENE
STEREREZMAE -

FRAEERMER REEERM MIREHRFRZ
SREEAFEREBGZEBE At RRIRE
MEFENRAAEE-

TR —EANEAR ZKRE

MR A M BRERMEINE—FFd > AEER
FFEEREHEZUVAER) (FINBAE)
2RI - it RIBE B BWREERF10
A SHBRE  AERNKEEGIREZH
NABEEINENBRARARNRE ZEFR
B HEREARI A—ERADEBS AR
M EREE-

17.78

FETRORARTEREREE  RmK
Ut HEm H A o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #E E2023FE6830HIEFE
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

18. B Z FEUNTR

Trade receivables B 5 EWER
Impairment BE

For the Group’s box office takings and sale of concession
goods and other products, payments on demand or in advance
in cash or by major credit/debit cards or other electronic/
mobile payment methods are normally required, with the
settlements from the corresponding banks or other financial
institutions normally within 2 to 30 days. The Group’s trading
terms with its other customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period is generally 1 month from the date of billing. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month MEB R
1 to 3 months 1E3(EH
Over 3 months EBELUE

MAEERFEWA - FFrEmkAMERZ
HE > —MUREIUETBEERNEF
SN EME T, BB AR SIRAT
i ERBITHEMEREE —REINE
30EMEE - AEBEAREMER Z BHIF
MEBLUEERNGEE - EEH—RNIRE
ZBEDBUER - AEEIITREBIZERER
B8 2 FEGR > b E IR fE T HA 2 B B HAAS
RoAEBIWEMUEE ZBUBRERFR AT
IR e EL A S B 1R FHETE - B 5 BUTR
AR

RIREHAR B 5 UG IZER B RN
ERREZRE DT ¢

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

P4
B —HEERIE 5

At the beginning of year
Additions — common control
combination

BRI R ERIREEEET -

Reversal of impairment BELLRE 7
Amount written off as uncollectible IR A E AW Bl 2 58

Exchange realignment PE R aAEE

At the end of the year RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HLEEE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BB (&

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a probability of default approach to measure ECLs.
The probability of default rates are estimated taking into
consideration the expectations for instruments with similar
credit risk. The calculation reflects certain relevant information
that is reasonable and available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forward-looking credit risk information.

Loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables with a total
gross amount of HK$1,435,000 (2022: HK$3,201,000) was
recognised in the current year as the trade receivables were
in default and considered by management as credit impaired.
Other than that, the ECLs as at 30 June 2023 and 2022 were
assessed by management to be minimal.

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
Prepayments AN
Deposits and other receivables* & M E MR

RERS BHRELBED T EREOHRR
HEStEREEERE - BRI
SHRBEREUEERBRZ TAZRRATU
5t e ZEtE RN E HRSERB AN
HBZMARNE N ERZERABEES
B BRI KA EERBERET
TERAE K o

EERURZBEERERRBES
1,435,000 7t (20224 : 3,201,000 7T) B
RAFEES > LT BN B ZBIRERE
WIREERBEEERAEDREREE FRILZ
s> BIR B ST 102023 & 2022465308
ZEHEEEEEM -

19.FAIR ~ & R H th UL TR

Less: Non-current portion

" IEREER D

Current portion TmENER D

* As at 30 June 2023, the Group had pledged time deposits
of HK$437,000 (2022: HK$535,000) for certain guarantees
issued by a bank. Included in the Group’s deposits and
other receivables are amounts due from joint ventures of
HK$3,561,000 (2022: HK$2,896,000) as at 30 June 2023,
which are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to deposits and other receivables for which there was no
recent history of significant default and there were no material
amounts in default. Their recoverability was assessed with
reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the ECLs as
at 30 June 2023 and 2022 were assessed by management to
be minimal.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  19.F8{1&h - & R EMthEUWE: (2

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Lease arrangements with Members of the
Emperor Group and related deposits paid

During the current and prior years, the Group had lease
arrangements (the “Lease Arrangements”) with Members of
the Emperor Group (as defined in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements) in connection with the leasing of office
and cinema properties from these companies. The total
nominal amount of deposits paid to these companies in
connection with the Lease Arrangements of HK$5,250,000
(2022: HK$5,441,000) was included in non-current deposits
as at the end of the reporting period. As at 30 June 2023, the
ROU Assets, the amortised cost of the deposits paid included
in non-current deposits and the lease liabilities in connection
with the Lease Arrangements amounted to HK$66,298,000,
HK$3,903,000 and HK$78,352,000 (2022: HK$85,819,000,
HK$3,899,000 and HK$98,200,000), respectively.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

R RIRTHERF

BREERREZ2HEZHIUARE
B digE

RAEFEERBRAEE AEBHREEER
RE (EERGEMBMRME3I4) B
ENFHEZHAERERYMEESRE
ZH(THHEZH)) EHEZHERZE
NZE AT 2L 4EEES,250,0008 7T
(20224F : 5,441,000 7T) BRI S HIR
A EN RS o R2023FE6830H 0 £
MEZHERMEREESE stAERS
ReZzBENRENEBHERAURBEESR
2 B #66,298,0007% 7T~ 3,903,00078 7T
78,352,000 7T (20224 : 85,819,000
713,899,000/ 75 598,200,00087T) °

20 RERREFEY

117,412

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$27,102,000 (2022: HK$29,473,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on applicable bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 3 months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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N\~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 R

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE

RIERR AEBUARBIARK))
SHEMIR S MIR1T45 5% 427,102,000/ 7T
(20224 : 29,473,000 7T) - A REERAE
R AEMER o 23m » RIFFPE RSN
FEEIREM ) R(EE - EERTESIER
E) AEBEEBEBERBETINEET
HIRTR AR R AHMEK

ETIRTHERZBAIEANRTERERN
TR RBEA S  FRHIE B AR &1
REMBBZE BFAEERFHNREH
SRIMTE » X 3% =18 A8 HA TE B 7F RUR) R BREX A
B RITAERR D RN I T B A SC 5 B
EERIFRIRIT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HLEEE

21. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 21. B Z R HfthEI R &t
AND ACCRUALS &EH

Trade payables BB (@) 34,531
Accruals fEst& A 24,369
Other payables HAE R (b) 58,260
117,160
Notes: fitst -
(a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the (a) MIREHFR > B ECRIREZQ 2 RE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: R -

Within 3 months 3EAA 32,102
Over 3 months MEAME 2,429
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BoEMNS AT ER—BRmERRNLES -

settled on 2-month terms.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (b) EfhFENEART B R FISHRAMEA o
term of 2 months.
22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2. S%aE

Short-term advances received  UWEYE B S HATE(G RIS
from customers:

Cinema operation EifrEE 43,102 19,332
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for BB EREREERTUEN 2 ZHATE(I R
cinema operation. The increase in contract liabilities as at 15 o BB M EEARARLL ) 548 E12022
30 June 2022 as compared to the end of the prior financial F6H30H ZEMEEHNWERE FFZHATE
period was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances IRIBRFTIE N (B1ERS RS BREMRH
received from customers, including as a result of an increase B2 INFTER) o BB F M BUHARMELL 6498
in the number of cinemas at the end of the respective reporting BE12023F6 8308 2B/ EEHNBUEL
periods. The decrease in contract liabilities as at 30 June 2023 a—EREB AR -

as compared to the end of the prior financial period was mainly
due to the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEE

23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Current TRED

Bank borrowing repayable within one 78k
year or on demand — unsecured RITEE —EIEH

Non-current FETRED

Other loan — unsecured Hth SR —|migH

FRHBEREEY

23. 5 BIRTT R EMEER

(a) 20,018

(b)

452,476

472,494

The bank borrowing and the other loan are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Notes:

(@) The bank borrowing bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate plus 2.2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had the Bank Loan Facility
amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2022: HK$20,000,000), of which
an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (2022:
HK$20,000,000) was utilised as at 30 June 2023.

The terms of the bank borrowing of the Group with a total
carrying amount of HK$20,030,000 as at 30 June 2023 (2022:
HK$20,018,000) contain a repayment on demand clause and,
accordingly, the bank borrowing has been classified as a
current liability, repayable within one year or on demand.

(b) The other loan bears interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had the Other Loan Facility
amounting to HK$1,200,000,000 (2022: HK$1,200,000,000), of
which an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$564,486,000
(2022: HK$447,486,000) was utilised as at 30 June 2023.

The other loan of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$595,633,000 (2022: HK$452,476,000)
(including accreted interest) as at 30 June 2023 has been
classified as a non-current liability as the lender, who is a
family member of Dr. Yeung and a director of the Company,
has agreed not to demand repayment of the other loan together
with all accrued interest and all outstanding amounts until 20
January 2026 (2022: 20 January 2024).

§<{| 30 Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
N\~ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 R
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FREERERER B RITERERDE
AREBBE N —ERREEREE
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B)ZHMERE RS EAIERSHERE LD
BHRER (ABELRAAT—REEZ—F
KEME) FEEZE202651820H (20224 :
2024518208 A A EREEEMETER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #H E2023FE6830HIEFE
24. PROVISIONS 24 #fH

At 1 July 2021 R2021F7H1H 46,211

Additions — common control combination (note 30) & — L E¥%EHI &6 (K15£30) 13,984

Additional provisions EIMEE 4,710

Exchange realignment PER AR

At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 2022568300 &%2022E781H

Additional provisions REIME B

Derecognition — loss of control of a subsidiary #1EFEST — A —RM B A 5] 2 325 1

(note 31) (Ktz%31)

Exchange realignment PE R AR

At 30 June 2023 1£2023%F6830H
Pursuant to the terms of relevant tenancy agreements, the BIEARAERSEET NEBEASTY
Group, as the lessee of certain leases of properties, has the HIEEABAREBEMBEERLGSE &b
obligations to reinstate its relevant leased properties to their B EETEERERRYEERRIESR
original state or to a condition as specified in the respective BEEREFREZR R ERRAERK
tenancy agreements at the cost of the Group at the end/upon o

the termination of the relevant lease terms.

The provisions for reinstatement costs are determined based EIEMABEILIEEESEERXZHELE K
on certain assumptions and estimates made by management EREBRMEL 2 ETRBREBREsTmE
with reference to past experience and currently available FoZERERGEVDINEETHREE R
information. The assumptions and estimates are reviewed and st & (U@ ) o

revised, where appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Year ended 30 June 2023 #E E2023FE6830HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

25.EFEFRIA
BIERESEREENAEEZEBMT :

EERERRE

At 1 July 2021
Additions — common control combination
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year

R2021FE78A1H 82,116
B — HEREER &5 31,188
FERIBI@ET AZIRERIE (13,409)

Exchange realignment PE AR (2,029)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2022 and 1£202296 8308 K2022F7TB1HZ
1 July 2022 RIEMIE S (RARER
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year F£E 185t A Z EIERIE
Exchange realignment PER AR
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2023 72023568300 2 IEIEIR B & E4ERE

Deferred tax assets

EERIAE E

At 1 July 2021 R2021F781H 82,116
Additions — common control combination B — HREIEGIS O 31,188
Deferred tax debited to profit or loss during the year FE 185114 2 IEIERIE (13,409)
Exchange realignment EREE (2,029)
Gross deferred tax assets at 30 June 2022 and R20225F6 8308 %2024 7H1H

1 July 2022 RN TR S AEARER
Deferred tax debited to profit or loss during the year EE 181 2 IEIERIE
Exchange realignment PE AR

Gross deferred tax assets at 30 June 2023

122023F 68300 2 IRIEIR IS EARER

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 £ %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Gross deferred tax assets
Gross deferred tax liabilities

LL&I/E\QE“ WA gg
LL&IE%T/ \Il VA gg

25.3EL*ﬁIE (HE

IBETRIBEE (7

MMM > S TRLRESENAEEE
REBBIR R PIEITIES) o LU T AR
REMS  AEBBEREERZ A :

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the (‘%?él\,ﬁa‘ AR R PSS 2
EIERMIBEEFEE

consolidated statement of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of HK$1,135,237,000 (2022: HK$966,854,000),
subject to the agreement by the relevant tax authorities,
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose, of which an
aggregate of HK$710,578,000 (2022: HK$617,137,000) is
available indefinitely and the remaining unrecognised tax
losses will expire in around one year to seven years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have mainly arisen in entities that have been loss-making
or due to the unpredictable future taxable profit streams of
these entities and, in the opinion of the directors, it is currently
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary differences arising from lease liabilities
of HK$104,634,000 (2022: HK$182,712,000). Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which these temporary differences can
be utilised.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAT]

RHREAR AEENRERREBEEES
1,135,237,00078 7t (20224 : 966,854,000787T) »
EAERAM B HRNRRT » ZEFRIEES
B ARIEEEEZSEREHIBZABZR
REREREF - BERE R & 3£710,578,000
7870 (20224 © 617,137,00078 7T) £ & m EA
R BR N RIESRIRIERT 1B A A IR H R 2R ME
R RN —FECFRE R HIRNZ
ZHEBRFEEFBREGHENER @En
ZEBEBRAEANARRER AT R B
EERABRAAEEISRARIESEIEZIE
RN AL KR E EE B DIELER
IEEE o

REBEHR ~EEHREEHERREELE Y
*EEEVU—_I’?D Hﬁﬁﬁ |“£#§5104 634 OOO/%TE
(20224 :182,712,000787T) - ML EH R 1%
AR BRI IAE E ) [YAARAT
AR K B] S5 A Pl A 2 FESRIR i AT AT L
PERSYRMERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEE

26.ISSUED CAPITAL 26.BB1TRRZ
Shares B
Authorised: EE -
50,000,000,000 (2022: 50,000,000,000) 50,000,000,000 (20224 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 50,000,000,000) iR EE
0.017B Tz i@k 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBEHRE :
3,213,340,890 (2022: 3,213,340,890) 3,213,340,890 (20224 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 3,213,340,890) K&K EE
0.018 Lz Bidhk
27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27 BERGHE ST S
Share options HERCE
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the AT BR2011FE11 58 H R4 BE RS =+ 21
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011 and lapsed automatically (I'st&8l))> mzta8Ier2021F1187THRE
upon its expiry on 7 November 2021. The Scheme was B B E SRR o 5T 8IF2021F 128 THEE
renewed on 7 December 2021. The major terms of the ] o ZEtalz F B &N T

Scheme are summarised as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme: To enable the Company to grant 1. FEIZEBWN  BAREREEKSHEE
options to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in FREREURERABRGD  FAHE
the Company as incentive or rewards for their contribution HAREBFTEEMZIREITIRE o
to the Group.

2. Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees, 2. B fEBZ2EEGEREES BER
including any directors of the Company, its subsidiaries REHNBRBSAERERIKER
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds an EFEREZANEE I EAES -
equity interest.

3. (a) Total number of shares available for issue as at 3. (a) RIEETEIF2023F98288 (ANE

28 September 2023 (i.e., the date of approval of MZEMFERER 2 HER) o] TE1T
these financial statements) under the Scheme: Z BRADHEER 321,334,089 B& 17 ©

321,334,089 shares

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as (b) MEMZSETUHERR HEBHEM
at the date of approval of these financial statements: BETRMZE DL 10%
10%

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023FE6H30HILEEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share options (continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Scheme:

(@) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors of the Company
or their respective associates in any one year
exceeding the higher of 0.10% of the shares in issue
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved by the shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option: At any time from the date of acceptance of
the option to such a date determined by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) but in any event
not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Vesting period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: No vesting period unless otherwise
determined by the Board.

(a) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;
and

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for trades in one or
more board lots of shares on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme: approximately 8 years
(expiring on 6 December 2031).

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted, exercised
or cancelled, or lapsed under the Scheme (2022: Nil).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 FE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR MR
Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023FE6830HIEFEE

28. RESERVES 28.(#fE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 62.

(a) Share premium

The application of share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(b) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation of
repurchased shares and accordingly reduction of nominal
value of share capital of the Company.

(c) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amount transferred
from the capital account due to the capital reduction
and share premium reduction as a result of a capital
reorganisation of the Company on 8 May 2014.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution under
certain circumstances. However, the Company cannot
make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if: (i) it is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

(d) Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve mainly comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations and the Group’s
net investments of foreign operations.

(e) Other reserve

Other reserve primarily arose from a business
combination under common control (note 30) and change
in ownership interest in existing subsidiaries.

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

FEBNAFERBEFENRETRRE
N FE2BNGREEmEFRET -

(a) Bef (B
B 15 i AR 2 M P 2 B BB 198148 24
S EBAOBIRE o

(b) BasFEEI A
B EE AR E TN EBERRS K
AR A A B AL (8 o

(c) BAEER
BN REFIEE A AT F20144558H
2 M7 BB AR T HE AT AR 2 1 SR e B 15
BRI E AR 25

RIEBEREISLIFRBE (BIEST) &
MBI A TER TR DK - 28
FRLURIER » A BG B B E R
PR IK & (1) AR B ERF N 72K
TEANHEEBPEE ; H((i)EAF
BEZASREREAMENE&R-

(d) SMEIR EN R
SNE R B B OISR A E S 5
EBUBRERAEENBIES
LEFEELCERER

(e) Hfthf#
HithEm T EELEBHRERN T2 X
Baft (&30 URIRERB AT Z
PREE#m 2 28 -

2. BBEEARFFERERZIFEE

B LE

REBMBEEEAIFFEREDZ B AT
BT -

Percentage of equity interest held by non- JEIZERGRE FRIFAGE T D LL ¢

controlling interests:

Emperor UA (together with its subsidiary 22 2422 (iE [ E B A D478
collectively referred to as the AT HAERBER))

“Emperor UA Group”)

30%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH . BEEXRIFERERZIERE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING MEB AT (&
INTERESTS (continued)

Profit/(loss) for the year ended 30 June D ECEIFIERIEHE E2023FE6
2023/period from 22 April 2022 (date 30HIEFE B2022F4822H
of common control combination) to 30 (HEEESISHEHER) £2022456
June 2022 allocated to non-controlling B30HEAm8ER, (F18) -

interests:
Emperor UA Group HERGER
Accumulated balance of non-controlling  JEIZERRHE RN E HEA R 5T

interests at the reporting date: AEER C

Emperor UA Group HEREER
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRIWKERBRBER U HFENBE A
information of the Emperor UA Group. The amounts disclosed WEZSBEAERRI DX BEEIREAZ
are before any inter-company eliminations: %A .

Revenue ON 5,217
Total income/(expenses), net B (F2) 358 (36,649)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period FE HBEMN 7 (E58) (31,432)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the FE, HIEZ2EW A~ (E518)42%8
year/period

Current assets MENEE 12,223
Non-current assets FERBEE 148,531
Current liabilities PEUp=V= (309,056)
Non-current liabilities ERBER (179,188)

Net cash flows from operating activities RERKE TS ZIBEHREFE
Net cash flows from investing activities KERE LB RS TSR
Net cash flows used in financing activities RIS EB 2 RS 2P

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 &IRESZEY)RE/DF2E

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M EE
Year ended 30 June 2023 # E2023FE6H30HILtEE

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 30.EFEIEHIT 2 XS 3

\138 B

COMMON CONTROL

During the year ended 30 June 2022, pursuant to certain
sale and purchase agreements, Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise Limited (“Emperor Motion Picture Enterprise”),
an indirect subsidiary of AY Entertainment Holdings, the
ultimate holding company of the Company, transferred its
100% equity interest in Tale Success Limited (“Tale Success”)
and a loan owing by Tale Success to Emperor Motion Picture
Enterprise (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) to the Group for a total
consideration of HK$4.0. As the Group and Tale Success are
under the common control of AY Entertainment Holdings (the
“controlling shareholder”) before and after the transfer, the
transfer has been accounted for as a business combination
under common control.

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has elected to account for the common control
combination using the pooling of interests method.
Accordingly, the results and cash flows of Tale Success and its
subsidiaries (the “Tale Success Group”) are consolidated by
the Group from the date of transfer, being the date on which
the Group obtained control, and continued to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. The consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2022 has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the Tale Success Group using existing book values from
the controlling shareholder’s perspective. No adjustments are
made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or
liabilities as a result of the common control combination.

Equity interest in a subsidiary of the Tale Success Group held
by a party other than the controlling shareholder prior to the
common control combination is presented as non-controlling
interests in equity in applying the pooling of interests method.

The difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying amounts of the net liabilities of the Tale Success
Group and the Shareholder’s Loan, net of the non-controlling
interests, at the date of common control combination
amounting to approximately HK$120,257,000 is recognised in
other reserve as at 30 June 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 5%k
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B REERCEARQAG(THESE
HEE ) (KRADRKIERABISS AR
ERZEBERBAR) I AAEBESZEER
Tale Success Limited (T'Tale Success.)
BY100%P&E 1 LA K Tale Success#E N E 25
FEENER(RERER) EREH4.0
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ZEH e HmERTAnEERaR&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The Tale Success Group is principally engaged in cinema
operation in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Details of the

30. XFEERI T ZEBEH (&

TaleSuccess%@I R AR RS A
REEEE P HEBEZEFI S HER > Tale

carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Tale
Success Group and the Shareholder's Loan at the date of
common control combination are as follows:

BEMEBIT -

Success%@ﬁ%&%f s VERE S RE ARG ER

Property, plant and equipment ERY Y 45,993
Right-of-use assets ERESE 140,539
Investment in an associate R—EBEREZIRE —*
Inventories 75 1,070
Trade receivables B 5 IR 1,584
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETRR 12T R E R WGR 20,048
Cash and cash equivalents HERHESZEY 8,903
Trade payables, other payables and accruals B SRR HtE R Est & A (27,878)
Provisions BE (13,984)
Contract liabilities BHEE (18,864)
Lease liabilities HESE (296,452)
Amount due to the immediate holding company &S B AT IE (328,865)
Amount due to non-controlling interest FE(T IR T RN IE (70,225)
(538,131)
Non-controlling interests JRIERG T 89,009
Shareholder’s Loan REE™R 328,865
(120,257)
Other reserve recognised BRI E M 120,257
Satisfied by: SHAR:
Cash RE —*

* Amount less than HK$1,000

* DIR1,0008 Tz 58

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAT]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEE

31. DECONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Deconsolidation of Emperor UA (Guangdong)

During the year, Emperor UA (Guangdong) made an
application to the relevant court in Mainland China for
insolvency liquidation. The court accepted the application
and designated an administrator in May 2023. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, upon the designation of the
administrator and the administrator's assumption of relevant
power over Emperor UA (Guangdong) under the Enterprise
Insolvency Law of the PRC, the Group has lost its control
over Emperor UA (Guangdong) as it no longer has power
over Emperor UA (Guangdong) in accordance with HKFRS 10

3LEUHRES AR—RIHBAR

BUHAZE AREEVUA (ER)
AR B S UA(BESR) [ 0 E Py e R
SEIE I A B o BUEREN 2023858 2
TR WIS EEA - AATEEDS
RIE(EA REFMBE G EREE) RisE
BIRAREIEASESUA(ER) AIEER0
BHE AEEDAEEHESUA(ESR)
Mg EEARBEBHIEREE
BIOFHSHBRE EFEHESUA(E
B)BEARES HELDEEEA AERS
UA (BE53) o

Consolidated Financial Statements and, accordingly, has since
deconsolidated Emperor UA (Guangdong).

The following table summarises the amounts of assets and
liabilities in Emperor UA (Guangdong) over which control was
lost:

TR REFIZEFRIEZREUVA(EBR) ZE
EXREETE

REERIRZEEREEZ DM -

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

Trade receivables B 5 R 477
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENTRR ~ s R E R UGR 11,950
Cash and cash equivalents REMREZEEY 329
Trade payables, other payables and accruals BSEAR - HthE st &R (34,399)
Provisions BE (8,978)
Contract liabilities =)=V (16,075)
Net liabilities B8P (46,696)

Deconsolidation of Emperor UA (Guangdong): BUHAR B ABRKEEZUA(ER) -

Investment retained in Emperor UA (Guangdong)* R E2UA (ER) RE 8B -
Amount due from Emperor UA (Guangdong)* FEWHEEZUA (BER) 218" -
Net liabilities derecognised HRIEER > aE P4 (46,696)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve TR AR I RE T AR PR EE SR BNl

upon loss of control 7,097
Derecognition of non-controlling interests RIS IR 81,426
Loss on loss of control of a subsidiary KEMB A B TS BB 41,827

* Initially recognised at the consolidation level at fair value * BAREBER GEEBEITE

FRE—EM B ATHEREZIRERIR

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the loss of control of a subsidiary: EEEYIRL R -
Cash and cash equivalents in Emperor UA REEZFIEZHEBUA(ER) 2RER
(Guangdong) over which control was lost HEEEY (329)
§<{| 40 Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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32.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
had non-cash additions to ROU Assets and lease
liabilities of HK$65,808,000 (2022: HK$85,914,000)
and HK$65,808,000 (2022: HK$85,914,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
leased properties.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, additional
provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
certain leased properties of the Group amounting
to HK$9,050,000 (2022: HK$4,710,000) was
recognised with corresponding additions to ROU
Assets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
had non-cash lease modifications to ROU Assets
and lease liabilities of HK$60,075,000 (2022:
HK$91,039,000) and HK$239,348,000 (2022:
HK$157,297,000), respectively, and gain on lease
modifications of approximately HK$179,273,000
(2022: HK$66,258,000), in respect of lease
arrangements for certain leased properties.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities
30 June 2023

At 1 July 2022

2022678 1H

Changes from financing cash BiBIR&HE &)

flows

Changes from operating cash #£&IREHE 2 S5
flows

New leases e

Lease modifications HEE:T

Interest expense FERE

Exchange realignment PE R sREE

At 30 June 2023 1202396 830H

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBIRAT]
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 4R

28RS RERMEE
(a) TEFREXSH

(i)

(iii)

B ZE2023F6 8300 L FE > A&
EMERYEHELTHBEEEE
BREENRMEAEBEZIERSR
& 9 B 465,808,000 7T (2022
£ :85,914,000787T) 565,808,000
7T (20224F © 85,914,000 7T) ©

B E2023F6H30H L FE > 7L A
EEETHEMEZEBEEMN
7 A 9 # £59,050,0007% 7T (2022
F 14,710,000 7T) EFESDAAF
EXrEERTAREEZRERE -

B E2023F6H30B EFEE AE
Bt e THRYE L AETH R
FHRREEREEaEZIERSHE
E1&579 8760,075,00078 7T (2022
£ 191,039,000 7T) K2239,348,000
7T (20224F 1 157,297,000 7T) » UL
KA EEFT 2 Wz 49179,273,00078
75 (20224F : 66,258,000787T) ©

(b) MEEBEEZEEZES)

202346H30H
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Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

32.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 2. HERERME (&
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEEFHEEZEEZEH
financing activities (continued) (4
30 June 2022 202246 530H

At 1 July 2021 R2021F7H1H 289,373 1,196,207 43,589
Changes from financing MERESRE 2 EF)
cash flows 174,620 (41,537) -
Covid-19-related rent REEHEAZRERERZ
concessions from lessors BEREEANEEER - (49,354) -
New leases WmEE - 85,914 -
Additions — common control A& — HEZEE| S5
combination (note 30) (H5£30) - 296,452 70,225
Change in ownership interest [ & /A 5] Fff 5 1 1 o B2 &)
of subsidiaries - - (43,589)
Lease modifications AEE:T - (157,297) -
Interest expense 2R 8,501 54,445 -
Exchange realignment R - (15,104) -
At 30 June 2022 7202286 830H 472,494 1,369,726 70,225
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZIRERH4E%E
The total cash outflow for leases included in the SHAGZERSERERZEEZRHESR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HaazEH BN T :

Within operating activities ISR
Within financing activities RREESHA

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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33.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the

33. B AKIE
(a) WIS SEBEEUTFESK

end of the reporting period: o

LUFRIECSFTRERER
Y B R R

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment

(b) The Group has various lease contracts that have not
yet commenced as at 30 June 2023. The future lease
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are
HK$1,060,000 due within one year, HK$13,011,000 due
in the second to fifth years, inclusive and HK$18,100,000
due after five years.

34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES (INCLUDING MEMBERS OF THE
EMPEROR GROUP)

(b) 72023F6B30R "EEBEE £ 1A
MR ZHE G4 & F P HE
BE S ZARRBEENTH1,060,000
BT —EAREIEE 13,011,000 7T
BECEFLF(BEBEWNSF) Ik
18,100,000 T A FEEIHR -

34.ERAEAN T (BEREEREMK
BN 5

(@) Related parties referred to herein or elsewhere in these

consolidated financial statements include (i) entities
beneficially owned/controlled by entity/entities owned by
relevant private discretionary trust(s) of which Dr. Yeung,
being a deemed substantial beneficial shareholder of the
Company, is the founder, whilst Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,
Alexander, a director of the Company, is one of the
eligible beneficiaries (“Members of the Emperor
Group”); (i) an entity beneficially owned by a director of
the Company; (iii) a deemed substantial beneficial
shareholder of the Company; and (iv) a family member of
a deemed substantial beneficial shareholder of the
Company and a director of the Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEXEEBRAT]
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 fE%R
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34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES (INCLUDING MEMBERS OF THE
EMPEROR GROUP) (continued)

(a) (continued)
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and

34.%%@?@_‘_}\1:(__@.?%%%%&
B)WH (&)
(a) (&
ez Fir e MR RE MU 5 FrsEut

balances detailed in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with
the following parties during the year:

2R BRI RAEERIN  AEBPRARE
EETHEAEALAUTRS :

Members of the Emperor Group

REEBEKE

Sales of goods* HEmR" 0]
Film promotion income** BREERA (i)
Film rental expense** BREERT (ii)
Purchases of furniture* BEEHRM (iii)
Interest expense on lease liabilites A& &&F SR (iv)
Lease payments not included in the Rt AFHESEEZ
measurement of lease liabilities* A& {17 (iv)
Financial advisory fee BFEEEmE (ii)

Reimbursement of general and
administrative expenses

BN —RRITHFEX

Other related parties” HBAEA LA
Sales of goods HERM (i)
Company secretarial fee REMEE (vi)
Interest expense on other HMEEZFEM=

borrowing (vii)
Joint venture BELE
Service fee income ARFS & U A (i)

Including sales of goods to subsidiaries of AY
Entertainment Holdings of approximately HK$186,000
(2022: HK$88,000) for the year.

**  Being transactions with subsidiaries of AY Entertainment
Holdings

The other related parties include (1) an entity beneficially
owned by a director of the Company, (2) Dr. Yeung,
(3) a family member of Dr. Yeung and a director of the
Company, and (4) directors of the Company.

The underlying related party transactions also constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F R
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BEAFEOBSHREERZWER
B H & 7 G £9186,0007% st (20224 :
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SHEBERIREER B AR ZRS
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34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES (INCLUDING MEMBERS OF THE
EMPEROR GROUP) (continued)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The sales of goods, film promotion and service fee
income were based on terms as agreed by the relevant
parties.

The amounts charged were based on terms as agreed
by the relevant parties as set out in the respective
agreements.

The purchases of furniture were based on terms as
agreed by the relevant parties as set out in the respective
agreements.

The leases were based on terms as agreed by the
relevant parties as set out in the respective tenancy
agreements.

The amounts charged were with reference to the costs
incurred.

The company secretarial fee charged by a related
company, which is beneficially owned by a director of the
Company, was based on terms as agreed by the relevant
parties.

Being interest on the other loan from a family member of
Dr. Yeung and a director of the Company. Details of the
terms of the other loan are disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The amounts due to related companies, representing
amounts due to Members of the Emperor Group, are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the amounts due
with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Details of the Group’s loans to its joint ventures are
included in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(e) As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the amount due to
non-controlling interest is unsecured and interest-free.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE

34. BN T (BIEHE LB
S5)NRG (&)
(a) (&
Wizt :

(i) HEBR BREBRRBEBATRZ
TR IR E 2 RRUETT

(i) PRUER Z ZEETSE RS P SRR A
THEZHR

(il) BEHRLDREBIGEMEAMALT
EZIFARETE -

(iv) ZFHEEDERSHEREHRERA
THEZER

(v) FRlERZ SEETS B EPRELERZ A o

(Vi) BERB—ZEFTEaERZMERT
WERZ ABIMEBETLERERALHE
ZIER e

(vi) BEREBELRERT—BREEFZ—F
KEMSHEMERZFE - HtER
ZIERF B BN R ERARMIEE23 -

(b) FEfIRREA BRIE (BN AE(J B 2 M
BE) ABTE  RERIZEREE -

(€) #2023%6830H %2022F6830H - f&
NEELERBEARER RERER
EREE-

(d) xEEmEE S ¥R SIS
IR B|RRMEELS ©

(e) #2023%68308 %2022F6H30H - f&
JIFERERRIEARIERREE °
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Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED 34 HRAEAT (BIFREEBER
PARTIES (INCLUDING MEMBERS OF THE B3R (&)
EMPEROR GROUP) (continued)
(f) Compensation of key management (f) ZEEFTEEIEAS 2 RN

personnel of the Group

Fees Fiaks
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEFNZE—THEBENGEEME
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. EFEFIEE9 o
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 5. % ERE D zEmMTA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial X EmTERREHRKRZETEWT
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
30 June 2023 2023%F6H30H
Financial assets ERMEE

BYHRERE

Investments in film productions

Trade receivables R 3E
Financial assets included in SEATENT EER

prepayments, deposits and other HthEWHIEZ ERMEE

receivables
Loans to joint ventures AR RERHEN
Amounts due from joint ventures G ERENRIE
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY

Mandatorily designated as such o RFlmtiEE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals

Amounts due to related companies

Amount due to a joint venture

Amount due to non-controlling interest

5.3 \RE Nz ERMTIA (F

e =N

S SNEN
SEAHMENRRESERZEMEAR

RS RREARIRIE
BN—EaE XA
PR IFEERR M AR IR

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sTRIBTTRAMES

Lease liabilities HE&E
30 June 2022 2022568308
Financial assets EREE

Investments in film productions BYHERE 5,850 - 5,850
Trade receivables ER Y EN - 17,653 17,653
Financial assets included in STATRMR EEK
prepayments, deposits and other HEWRIB £ MEE
receivables - 64,584 64,584
Loan to a joint venture m—EaEhEREENR - 16,500 16,500
Cash and cash equivalents RERPESZEEY - 117,412 117,412
5,850 216,149 221,999

* Mandatorily designated as such

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE

* o REEItiEE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

5. \RE N2 ERMTIA (F

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

e SN

Trade payables B2 AR 34,531

Financial liabilities included in other payables and st A EMIFESFIREStER 2 SREaE
accruals 75,929
Amounts due to related companies FEIREE AT IE 3,249
Amount due to a joint venture FEN—HEaEhERIE 250
Amount due to non-controlling interest FE(T IR T =R IE 70,225
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRIBITRAMES 472,494
Lease liabilities HE&aRE 1,369,726
2,026,404

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

BARMBESABRZRN
AINB AR 2 RERE

Equity investment in a former
subsidiary at fair value
through profit or loss

Investments in film productions B & ERE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, the current portion of
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to related
companies, joint ventures and non-controlling interest, and the
current portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
reasonably approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities/repayable on demand of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 F R
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36.EMTAZARBERAME
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BE4 (&
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses the RERSGHFR > AERFGERTERARE
fair value measurement of financial instruments and analyses Bt 2RO T BB ESE T PG
the movements in the values of financial instruments and BFETENEASE SEEERHELET
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The o

valuation is reviewed and approved by management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are THEEREBEZANEERIANRBER
included in the amount at which the instrument could be g EZIRER %(%ﬁi_jl = E kR
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, SN RS SEB AR - BRAMUTAHER
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following REEHEANDEBE -

methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial assets AR B LEMERR . SEE
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, ZIEREE D UK BIRITTREMEE Y
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings had been NaEBELDEFEEESHBEBEALUES - EE
calculated and assessed mainly by discounting the expected R ARG TIHEEN T EMMER) ZIRE
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments A AFXRALIRBA R KBS N2 8 KT
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, as o R ZAE ER2023F6830H K20224F6
appropriate. The changes in fair value as a result of the BI30H#MA BRITREMEBEENEKE ~E
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank HRRMERN A AEBEEE L AL
and other borrowings as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 BERoFAFBNMA B REMERT S
were assessed to be insignificant. The fair values of the non- MEEZIEREFHE S L/()g'qur%ﬁE TREM
current portion of financial assets included in prepayments, EEANEEAHEmMERES

deposits and other receivables, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts.

For investments in film productions which were released for EREFEHEE N B AESE
theatrical release in their primary markets, their fair values as MmE > HiN2023F K%2022F6B30HZ A%
at 30 June 2023 and 2022 were estimated with reference to BELREE BB ERFIGRRIES
the remaining net proceeds receivable from the exploitation of FEIETT(HET o

the films.

The Group has an unlisted equity investment in a former REBBEN—RBaIMB AR ZIE LT gk
subsidiary, which represents the investment retained in BEFENREZEUA(ER)RE2BE) K&
Emperor UA (Guangdong). The Group has estimated the fair BFEENZE éz%ﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁ;}siﬁ%m {5 F8
value of this unlisted investment by using a discounted cash BRI S R EmEEN AT IF EHREEZ A
flow valuation model primarily based on the expected future AEBEEH - AANTEET A BEREIEZE
cash flows from the investment. In the opinion of the directors BT ESEABEESRA B EAAEBES
of the Company, no material cash inflows are currently A RiE

expected from this investment and, accordingly, its fair value is
considered to be minimal.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 FE R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE2023F6H30HILEEE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36.EMITAZARBERANE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEH (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to LUTFA2023F K2022F6 8308 REERE
the valuation of the Group’s investments in film productions ERMEREGMBEPTAE AN ] R A s
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 30 June BERECBEESTZBE
2023 and 2022:

Investments in Income approach, Discount rate 6.50% (2022: 6.50%) 5% (2022: 5%) increase/
film productions  discounted cash  B4IRZ 6.50% (20224 : 6.50%)  decrease in discount
BRYNERE flow method rate would result in
WAL > BEER decrease/increase in
REREE fair value by HK$30

(2022: HK$2,000)
5% (20224F : 5%)

ALIREIE N,
RHEHRANEE
L HEIN30E T
(20224 : 2,000587T)

Fair value hierarchy NABEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITAEESHTEAANEBEIEZS

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: RIZARNBEASZEE

Assets measured at fair value: RARBEAEZEE -

30 June 2023 2023%6H30H

Financial assets at FVPL: BARBEFABRY
EREE
Equity investment in a former BANBESAEG
subsidiary at fair value through ZIRAMEATZ
profit or loss RIERE

Investments in film productions ~ BEHFIRE

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 6.EMTREZARBERANE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
30 June 2022

BFR (&)

RARBEAIERZEE : (&)
2022F6H30H

Financial assets at FVPL: BARBE AER
ZEREE
Investments in film B AERE

productions

- 5,850 5,850

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

REEBIMANEESFELSUT ¢

Investments in film productions: BERERE

At the beginning of the year REH]

Total gains recognised in profit or loss 1185 PINESS 2 WL AR RE
Settlements mE

At the end of the year RER

For the equity investment in a former subsidiary, except for
initial recognition of the investment, being the investment
retained in Emperor UA (Guangdong) after the loss of control
of this subsidiary at minimal (zero) fair value, there were no
movements in fair value measurements during the year (2022:
Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2022: Nil).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE

MRAIM B AT Z RIEREMS » BRENE
RZRE (RN D) AAEEREAEE
SUA(ER) 2 EFIEBRZNBATRE
ZRE) 2 AEEAABEFELES
&) (20224 : ) o

AEEF2023F 2202268308 i FmE#ES
EARANBEFEZEMEE
RAFE » FUREEURZBLEANEE

STEEE HEMBEEKRETRERITEAR
BEFEBANELE3IMR (2022F : ) -
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.MFRAMEIEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, an amount
due to non-controlling interest, and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as investments in
film productions, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
and balances with joint ventures and related companies which
mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group
mitigates the risk by monitoring closely and regularly the
movements in interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (through
the impact on floating rate interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings).

KEEZ TETRM T AGEBRITREM
EE - HEAR  BIHERBDRIEUR
ReEAReEBEY LEEMIAZTER
ML RrEREBEBRHES A5EE
BXEHAMEMEERER  WEXRIFR
B BHRBWR - sEATRN R I R EM
Bl Rz ERMEE  BHBIRUKRET AR
MR ES ERz EMEBEURESE
TERBEABZER MITEERKREE
HaEge-

FEESHIAELEZTERABATXE
B SNERRE S EERBRERABE SRR -
EEERNRMZEEZSERABIEE A
B R R o

B I
FAEEEETERAEEZTHNRAEZ
StRIRITRAMEEARZHHHXES
R AEEEEERETREF RETH
2R o

TRETEMEEMEERIF A ZIBENR
T AEEGRAEGR(BEHFBRITR
HMEEZ R E) BRI EHRZ 5K
FZHRE -

30 June 2023 2023%E6H30H

HK$ borrowings BrEE

30 June 2022 20225 6H30H

HK$ borrowings BILEE 50 2,362
(50) (2,362)
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37N.MFERAMEIEBEREEK (&2

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from changes in foreign exchange rates of foreign-currency-
denominated activities in commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities in foreign operations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Malaysian
Ringgit (“MYR”) and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax and the Group’s
equity (arising from MYR and RMB denominated financial
instruments).

& B2 JE B
FEREA RS EEBAR ZEARKE
BEXSRLMERHEZ EB KBS EBF
ERREERa R EXEY -

TR A EthE SRS AN EAYIE R
T AEBRGRAGRERAEREDZ CRE
UEHRADSS((BRADBLT) AR
BeHEZ SR TR) RIS PEARE ERE
g%\%&)\ REBEXRNGIERSEEHPIHR

30 June 2023 2023568308

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens HBTRERADSCHEE
against the MYR

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens AT ERADSEHEAE
against the MYR

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens B TR ARKEE
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREAE
against the RMB

30 June 2022 20229F6430H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens

HETRERARLTRE

against the MYR 5 (2,765)"
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT R ERALESHAE
against the MYR (5) 2,765"
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BB TR AREERE
against the RMB 5 (14,817)*
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens HBTREAREHE
against the RMB (5) 14,817%
*  Being exchange fluctuation reserve * BIEREENEE
# Increase/(decrease) in equity # RGN, CRL)
Increase/(decrease) in loss before tax FRIRRTESIEIE N, Rl
Credit risk EERME

The Group trades on credit mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

Emperor Culture Group Limited EEX({CEXE@BMBRRXA 153
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3T.MBRMEEBRRER (&

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BRAREMRRERMEE (&
30 June 2023 2023%6H30H

Trade receivables*®

Financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and ~ FEWFIEY SRIEE
other receivables
- Normal** —EB*

Loans to joint ventures SO EEMHES

Amounts due from joint FEU &g
ventures
- Normal** —FiEe

Cash and cash equivalents ~ H&RIRESZEY)
— Not yet past due — R

30 June 2022 20224 6H30H

Trade receivables* B rEWE - - - 20,854 20,854
Financial assets included in 5t ATE(T RN~ 125 R E Mt

prepayments, deposits and ~ FEWFIEZ £RIEE

other receivables

— Normal** —EE** 64,584 - - - 64,584
Loan to a joint venture B—EaEEEREEN 16,500 - - - 16,500
Cash and cash equivalents & KRS ZEEY)

— Not yet past due — B R AR 117,412 - - - 117,412

198,496 - - 20,854 219,350
* For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified * NEBEGE S EWNRERE S RES R E—

approach for impairment, further detailed information is

THBENGREMBRAMEI8KE

disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in o
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant

SPARNMR ZEhAMBRRZEREEZ
EEESERAMBRRAIER BllEE
KRR EE BRI LUREE R RRERE
Binettsh EMEEZEEEEREREF

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, 5% o

“doubtful”.

the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

REXEEREEABRAE

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE2023F6830HILEEE

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BRI EEBERKRBUER (&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk TRENE & B
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate funds to meet FEEETREREZESLUREHESR
commitments associated with its financial liabilities, while BERMZAE RAESBERAELEERZE
maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and EfENES 7 BERE R 2 B4EET
flexibility through the use of the Group’s credit facilities. Cash oEEEEEAERSRAEHEREE
flows of the Group are closely monitored by management on ZEHBERESS X BARSTRE &
an on-going basis, considering the maturity of the Group’s HEQSEER R AREFIRS RS o

financial liabilities and financial assets, and projected cash
flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEBRREHRRZE/EBEEREIAIER
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BRIR IR 2 B ERIE RN T

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

30 June 2023 2023%F6H30H
Trade payables B eI

Financial liabilities included in 5T A ELfth F& {3 Kz fE
other payables and accruals stERZ &S

Amounts due to related companies FE(IRIEA RIS

Amount due to a joint venture FE—RI&EhERIE

Amount due to non-controlling F&{tIF1%iG #E 25 IE
interest

Interest-bearing bank and FFERITRAEMBEER
other borrowings

Lease liabilities HEE®E

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3T.MBRMEEBRRER (&

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows: (continued)

MEE TR (A
FEERREHRZ SHABERBITHR
BIRRZEIBIERMT : ()

30 June 2022 202256H30H
Trade payables B IR 34,531 - - 34,531
Financial liabilities included in 5T A ELfth F& {3 Rz fE
other payables and accruals stERZ&RIEE 75,929 - - 75,929
Amounts due to related companies FE{< BiiE A Bl 7118 3,249 - - 3,249
Amount due to a joint venture FE{T—R& & ¥
15 250 - — 250
Amount due to non-controlling F&{tFE1%iG #E 25 FUIE
interest 70,225 - - 70,225
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITRAEMBEER
other borrowings 20,018 479,358 - 499,376
Lease liabilities HES8E 188,298 770,959 613,186 1,572,443
392,500 1,250,317 613,186 2,256,003

As at 30 June 2023, the above interest-bearing bank
borrowing with a carrying amount of HK$20,030,000 (2022:
HK$20,018,000) contains a repayment on demand clause
giving the relevant bank the unconditional right to call in the
borrowing at any time and, therefore, for the purpose of the
above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors of the
Company do not believe that the bank borrowing will be
called in in its entirety at any time before its maturity and
they consider that the borrowing will be repaid in accordance
with the maturity date as set out in the banking facility letter
and bank correspondences. This evaluation was made
after considering: the consolidated financial position of the
Group at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the lack of events of default, and the fact that the
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37N.MFERAMEIEBEREEK (&2

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

In accordance with the terms of the bank borrowing which
contain a repayment on demand clause, the maturity profile
of the bank borrowing as at 30 June 2023, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of
any repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

7£2023F6H30H

At 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2022 11202268308

mEBEE R (&

RIEE SR BERERIERB R TIERER
% IR BRI 202356 530 H EIAR R
F(EREORBRMAURTZ BT
ERERGENOTE) HIIOT :

- 20,479 20,479

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios, as appropriate, in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regards issued capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the owners of the parent
as its capital and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 30
June 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing the total borrowings (including amount
due to non-controlling interest and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings) by total assets. As at 30 June 2023, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 48.9% (2022: 30.0%).

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEXEBRBRAE

BEFREE

FEENTEEAEEAREREAERRF
BIRERRE N MR REINE AR LR (W3
) UFHEREET R AERRER

AEERFERTRE  RODGERGABE
BEARGFIEEME S EERIFEERLE
BHENSBIARBEE R EE RABRE
ERRRRFRINUEE - &2 T SREEE
AAGHE > AEE A BITHR - BIE2023F K
2022F6A30HIEFE EXEERR K

SEBUEBEEEBLEXEILUBES (81
FEfTIEER R RIB R 5T BiR1T R EME
B)BUEEE) BREE A 1202356
B30H AEBEES B L X A48.9%
(20224F : 30.0%) °
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38.ZxATIBA#S4RE

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BRAASRRE R ZHERARZ AR
BIIWT :

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEBBEE

Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE

CURRENT ASSETS MENE E

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{ER ~ % 5& B L FELUR R

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY

Total current assets MBEEEE

CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE

Other payables and accruals HpE MR st & A

Amount due to a related company FE(SRAEABIFIE

Total current liabilities mMBIAEEE

NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE

Net assets BEFE

EQUITY ¥

Issued capital S TR

Reserves (note) & (Fiat)

Total equity R AREE
Note: Bat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRABEHEEZBEEZWT .

At 1 July 2021
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss for the year

K2021F781H
FEBEREEZEBE
et

912,843 50 58,658 (906,818) 64,733

(5,108) (5,108)

At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 4202268308 &

202278 1H
Loss for the year and total FEFENTEZAEBE
comprehensive loss for the year ~ 43%8
At 30 June 2023 122023F6830H

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & E2023F6H30HEFE

39. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 39.LEERE B
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified/ ETHERESBEEEH M SEHDEURS
regrouped to confirm with the current year’s presentation. NEEZ 250

40. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 0.4 M FBHRRIALE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and A BERAREN2023FIB 28HKREFTE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 September HEE R I RE T 22 o
2023.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX({CEXEBERAE
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Five-year Financial Summary
EFMBHE

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilites TR EFRBELEFBRFTFEEE EE
of the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the K&&> LHFEFEETE 2 EBEXIESHER
published audited consolidated financial statements: E

REVENUE WA 306,713 192,908 126,245 145,753
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRfRAIESE (218,402) (228,078) (354,202)  (134,285)
Income tax credit FriStRiE % - - 976 -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERE (218,402)  (228,078) (353,226)  (134,285)
PROFIT/(LOSS) UTFALREM

ATTRIBUTABLE TO: wH 7 (B518) ¢

Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZ=PN (201,379) (219,775) (342,181) (126,437)

Non-controlling interests IRV T (17,023) (8,303) (11,045) (7,848)

(218,402)  (228,078) (353,226)  (134,285)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE

Total assets HEE 1,809,203 1,725,747 1,716,344 700,273
Total liabilities =L (2,140,901) (1,672,722) (1,458,797) (101,144)
Net assets/(liabilities) BERE (BEFEH) (331,698) 53,025 257,547 599,129
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: I\ T AT FE{L#ES ¢
Owners of the parent BREHEE A (233,452) 96,866 293,673 623,518
Non-controlling interests JEFERS M (98,246) (43,841) (36,126) (24,389)

(331,698) 53,025 257,547 599,129

Emperor Culture Group Limited HENEEX£EBRFRAE
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